If you have issues viewing or accessing this file contact us at NCJRS.gov.





Washington State Department of Community Development

Washington State Defender Assistance Program: An Evaluation

April 1993



Lanas Victor

Ladante de Lacontro.

2010/01/02

Stronger Communities For A Better Washington

142916



Research and Evaluation

Washington State Department of Community Development

Barbara B. Gooding, *Director* Kate Heimbach, *Assistant Director*

906 Columbia Street SW PO Box 48300 Olympia, Washington 98504-8300

Washington State Defender Assistance Program: An Evaluation

Dr. Patrick M. Moran, Research Investigator April 1993



Recycled / Recyclable

Stronger Communities For A Better Washington

142°16

U.S. Department of Justice National Institute of Justice

This document has been reproduced exactly as received from the person or organization originating it. Points of view or opinions stated in this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the National Institute of Justice.

Permission to reproduce this completed material has been granted by

Public	: Domain/OJI	P/BJS	
U.S.	Department	of Justice	

to the National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS).

Further reproduction outside of the NCJRS system requires permission of the semicodet owner.

This program is supported by Grant #93-DB-CX-0053, awarded by the Bureau of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. The Assistant Attorney General, Office of Justice Programs, coordinates the activities of the following program offices and bureaus: Bureau of Justice Assistance, Bureau of Justice Statistics, National Institute of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, and the Office for Victims of Crime. Points of view or opinions contained within this document do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice.

The survey data reflectd in this report are taken directly from the survey responses. Opinions expressed by the respondents are not necessarily the views of the author nor the Washington State Department of Community Development.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

an de la

Section	Page
List of Tables	iii
List of Charts	iv
Executive Summary	
Overview	. 1
General Program Goals	5
Methods	7
Findings:	9
Consultation Services	13
Training	18
Brief Bank	27
DefenseNET Newsletter	29
Drug Defense Manual	31
Amicus Curiae	32
Summary and Recommendations:	33
Consultation Services	35
Training	36
Brief Bank	38
DefenseNET Newsletter	39
Drug Defense Manual	39
Amicus Curiae	40

APPENDICES

		raye
A:	State Drug Policy Advisory Board	41
в:	Survey Instrument	45
C:	Synopsis of Select Course Offerings	49
D:	Brief Bank Resource Form and List of Collected Briefs	53
E:	DefenseNET Newsletter	57
F:	Select Section of Drug Defense Manual	61

Ì

ł

LIST OF TABLES

Ĵ

Í

I

Í

Î

	Page
In-Person Consultation Services	15
Telephone Consultation Services	17
Defending Drug Cases	20
Exceptional Downward Sentencing	21
Gangs and Drugs	21
Making Your Point in the War on Drugs (Seattle)	22
Making Your Point in the War on Drugs (Spokane)	23
Making Your Point in the War on Drugs (Tri-Cities)	23
Making Your Point in the War on Drugs (all regions)	24
Drug Updates - Defender Conference	25
Advanced Training in the War on Drugs	26
Brief Bank	29
DefenseNET	30

LIST OF CHARTS

-

Page BJA Funded Areas: SFY 1992 - FFY 1993 1. 3 BJA Funded Areas: Si 1993 - FFY 1992 2. 3 3. Number and Type of Consultations 13 Number of In-Person Consultations 4. 14 5. Number of Telephone Consultations and Number of Hours of Service 16 Number of Telephone Consultations 6. 16

§ .

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

9

Ì

Î

Í

1

J

ł

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Defender Assistance Program was first funded through U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA), funds in 1988. Discontinued for three years, this program was funded once again in 1992 and during that year the Program received 2.2 percent of BJA funds and during the next year it received 3.13 percent.

The goals of this program are:

Ó

0

- 1. Providing consultation services to public defenders throughout the state.
- 2. Conducting and participating in local and regional continuing legal education **training**.
- 3. Contributing to the Washington Defender Association brief bank.
- 4. Producing and distributing the DefenseNET Newsletter.
- 5. Producing and distributing a Drug Defense Manual.
- 6. Appearing in court as **amicus curiae** in "cases involving broad impact" and providing other legal assistance.

Program performance was assessed through the analysis of data and information obtained through three means: interviews with the Washington Defender Association (WDA) Executive Director, a review of Quarterly Activity Reports, and a survey instrument circulated to all individuals on the DefenseNET mailing list (defender organizations and individual members). A 32 percent return rate was obtained on surveys circulated to 657 potential respondents (n = 210).

- 58.6 percent were attorney's with defender organizations (n = 123)
- 26.7 percent were individual member attorneys (n = 56)

v

- 0 5.7 percent were administrators with defender organizations (n = 12)
- 0 5.2 percent were investigator with defender organizations (n = 11)
- 1.4 percent were individual member investigators (n = 3)
 1.0 percent were employed in non-identified positions

with defender organizations (n = 2)

positions (n = 1)

0 1.0 percent were individual member administrators (n = 2)
0 .5 percent were individual members in non-identified

General written comments were provided by 15 of the respondents and of those only one was negative in tone. Most called for an increase in funding. The majority of those individuals recorded a continued need and support for the program and its resources. Individuals who recorded those observations were largely attorneys with defender organizations.

Fifty-nine percent of the respondents were attorneys with defender organizations, but this represented only a 27 percent return rate for defender organization personnel. Although individuals in private practice (i.e., "individual members") made up only 25 percent of the potential respondent pool, this group realized a 46 percent return rate.

Consultation Services

0

Consultation services are provided upon request by program resource attorney staff.

- O Between October 1991 and September 1992, 267 consultations were provided.
 - Except for one quarter (July September 1992), the number of telephone consultations increased while the number of in-person consultations decreased.

vi

- O 25 in-person consultations were provided to 17 separate agencies/offices.
- O Related to satisfaction, timeliness, and applicability, over 85 percent of the total number of respondents assigned a "high" rating to in-person consultation services.
- O 242 telephone consultations were provided, averaging approximately 1.18 hours each for a total of 286 hours.
- 0

Lange Contract

-

teres -

Over 75 percent of the respondents assigned a "high" rating to the areas of satisfaction, timeliness, and applicability of telephone consultation services.

Four attorneys provided written feedback, and three of these individuals were with defender organizations. All provided highly positive input regarding the program resource attorney who provided the assistance. The fourth attorney was engaged in private practice and stated that he wasn't aware that the consultation service was available.

consultation services provided to No in-person were individuals in private practice though a number of telephone consultations were provided to private practice attorneys. Only 48 percent of the respondents (n = 100) recorded that they received one of these forms of consultation. The remaining 52 percent did not record an assessment of the service. It can be assumed that the absence of the requested assessment indicates that they were unaware of its existence or were of the opinion that they could not benefit from it. Either way, it is be recommended that:

• The availability of this resource be made better known to individuals with both public defender organizations and in private practice. The DefenseNET Newsletter would appear to be an ideal vehicle for this.

vii

Training

Over a seven-month period, program staff participated in the provision of Continuing Legal Education training to 536 attorneys and investigators.

- O 25 percent of the respondents attended the Defending Drug Cases training held in Spokane; 71 percent stated they were highly satisfied and 63 percent stated it was highly applicable.
- O Only two percent of the respondents attended the Exceptional Downward Sentencing training held in Pierce County; 50 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 75 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- 0 12 percent of the respondents attended the Gangs and Drugs training held in Seattle; 40 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 38 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- O 21 percent of the respondents attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in Seattle; 75 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 73 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- O 11 percent of the respondents attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in Spokane; 48 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 50 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- 0 5 percent of the respondents attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in the Tri-cities area; 60 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 70 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- O 37 percent of the respondents attended a Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training session; 65 percent of the respondents stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 66 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- 0 16 percent of the respondents attended the Drug Updates -Defender Conference held in Winthrop; 71 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 74 percent stated that it was highly applicable.

10 percent of the respondents attended the Advanced Training in the War on Drugs training held in Yakima; 65 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 74 percent stated that it was highly applicable.

Six individuals took the opportunity to provide written feedback regarding the training. Four of these were attorneys with defender organizations; two of them offered suggestions for future training and two indicated that they did not find the training helpful. The two investigators who responded, one attached to a defender organization and one in private practice, offered the suggestion that more training be geared toward the needs of the investigator.

The percentage of respondents who attended these training sessions ranged from two percent to 25 percent. There was a great deal of variation in the respondents' satisfaction level and assessment of training applicability. Most of the written comments indicated that, at least among these respondents, training relevance is an issue. Therefore, it is recommended that:

• The training needs of both public and private practice attorneys and investigators be assessed and a mechanism be developed to measure participant satisfaction (e.g., training evaluation forms).

Brief Bank

(

Ö

Twenty-one percent of survey respondents recorded that they used the WDA brief bank.

- O These individuals accessed the brief bank over 137 times.
- O A high satisfaction rating was assigned by 74 percent of the respondents.
- O A high timeliness rating was assigned by 86 percent of the respondents.

ix

A high applicability rating was assigned by 66 percent of the respondents.

Two attorneys with public defender organizations commented on brief bank resources. Both indicated that although they have not used this resource in the past, they will in the future.

Approximately one-fifth of the respondents indicated that they used brief bank resources. Most individuals recorded a high level of satisfaction with the resource and found service very timely. Fewer respondents indicated that the applicability of the resource was high. Only seven percent of the respondents recorded that they had submitted material to the brief bank. It is recommended that:

A greater effort be made to solicit briefs from attorneys in both public and private practice which would reflect the needs of WDA members.

DefenseNET Newslotter

0

Ninety percent of the respondents provided an assessment of the DefenseNet Newsletter.

- 0 78 percent assigned a high satisfaction rating.
- 0 75 percent assigned a high timeliness rating.
- 0 74 percent assigned a high applicability rating.

Nine individuals provided written feedback related to the DefenseNET Newsletter. Without exception, whether attorney or investigator in public or private practice, no one provided a negative assessment.

By approximately three to one, respondents assigned high ratings to DefenseNET timeliness and applicability, as well as overall satisfaction. No recommendations are offered regarding this publication.

х

Drug Defense Manual

The Drug Defense Manual took nearly one and one-half years to complete. Considering the scope and complexity of the work, this is understandable. Review of written comments offered by respondents reflects a high level of satisfaction, if not outright praise, regarding the briefs composed by these program attorneys.

As noted, the Drug Defense Manual has only recently been distributed. It is recommended, though, that:

Recommendations obtained from individuals attending training conducted by WDA staff be incorporated in future revisions.

Amicus Curiae

Ì

Due to the unique nature of amicus curiae work, no recommendations are offered. It should be noted that written responses indicate a high level of satisfaction with this form of assistance.

OVERVIEW

1

Î

Í

8

Í

Ĵ

OVERVIEW

The Defender Assistance Program was first funded in Washington State out of U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA), funds in 1988 (State Fiscal Year). These funds were made available through the 1988 <u>Anti-Drug Abuse Act</u> (P.L. 100-690), Drug Control and System Improvement Grant Program, and were administered by the Washington State Department of Community Development (DCD). Although the impetus of BJA program funds has been the investigation, arrest, and prosecution of suspected drug offenders, these funds have also been used to support innovative programs which facilitate judicial proceedings. The increase in federal and state funding to programs concerned with the arrest and prosecution of suspected illegal drug users and suppliers during the last 12 or so years has had the effect of straining defender resources.

The Defender Assistance Program seeks to ensure that the rights guaranteed all individuals under both the state and federal constitutions are protected. This program was funded under the Act's tenth listed purpose area:

"Programs which improve the operational effectiveness of the court process through programs such as court delay reduction programs and enhancement programs."

A key to this purpose area was presented in the BJA <u>Individual Project Report (IPR) Instructions</u> (August, 1991). The aim of this purpose area, as presented in the "key", is "[i]mproving court-based operations and adjudication management systems to

allow more effective and efficient case processing" (p. 5). The rationale for this program was succinctly stated in the DCD composed Narcotics Control Strategy:

"With the increase in substance-abuse related arrests, the need for adequate defense services has risen. The Defender Assistance Program provides resources to improve and coordinate statewide indigent defense proceedings involving drug offenses in a manner consistent with state, local, and tribal priorities." (p. 30)

This Narcotics Control Strategy was drafted under review by a multi-agency State Drug Policy Advisory Board (see Appendix A). The Defender Assistance Program was, and is, coordinated by the Washington Defender Association (WDA) located in Seattle, Washington. Further, this program was designed by WDA in response to direction and feedback by public defender agencies throughout the state. These agencies were:

Assigned Council for the Accused (King County) Clallam/Jefferson County Northwest Defender Association (King County) Pierce County Society of Counsel Representing Accused Persons (King County) Seattle-King County Skagit County Skagit County Snohomish County Spokane County Thurston County Washington Appellate Defender Whatcom County Yakima County

Although the Defender Assistance Program was first funded in 1988, four years were to pass before this program was funded out of BJA funds once again in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 1992. During SFY 1992, this program received 2.2 percent of BJA funds.



The following year, the Defender Assistance Program received a 36 percent increase in funding. This program was the only program area, except Program Support, which did not receive a reduction in support.





It should be noted, though, that the Defender Assistance Program received the smallest proportion of overall funding during both years (2.2 percent and 3.13 percent per year for SFY 1992 and SFY 1993 respectively).



GENERAL PROGRAM GOALS

.

÷.

GENERAL PROGRAM GOALS

The Defender Assistance Program identified five major goals in its original funding proposal dated May 30, 1991. Early during program implementation, the program took on the additional responsibility of producing a bi-monthly newsletter (DefenseNET). These program goals are:

- 1. Providing consultation services to public defenders throughout the state.
- 2. Conducting and participating in local and regional continuing legal education **training**.
- 3. Contributing to the Washington Defender Association brief bank.
- 4. Producing and distributing the DefenseNET Newsletter.
- 5. Producing and distributing a Drug Defense Manual.
- 6. Appearing in court as **amicus curiae** in "cases involving broad impact" and providing other legal assistance.

Each of these program goals will be addressed in the following

pages.

¥.



METHODS

l

METHODS

Information related to program structure and performance was obtained through three means:

1. An interview with the WDA Executive Director.

- 2. A review of the Defender Assistance Program Quarterly Activity Reports.
- 3. A survey of program assistance recipients.

The interview format used with the WDA Executive Director, consisted of a series of open-ended questions. These questions were concerned with training activities, consultation services, the WDA brief bank, the DefenseNET Newsletter, amicus curiae support, and the Drug Defense Manual.

Review of the Quarterly Activity Reports covered the period October 1991 through September 1992. Material presented in a typical quarterly activity report included consultation activities and number of related hours, seminar and training activities, the DefenseNET Newsletter, and the Drug Defense Manual. In addition, program staff performance was also noted; e.g., amicus curiae work.

The survey was developed after the Executive Director interview and review of the quarterly activity reports. Except for amicus curiae, the areas covered in the instrument were the same as outlined in the preceding paragraphs. Utilizing the DefenseNET mailing list of WDA members, 657 surveys were sent out with a requested return date of January 15, 1993 (see Appendix B for a copy of this instrument). The respondents were attorneys,

investigators, and administrators in both public and private practice. One-hundred sixty-two surveys were sent directly to individual members and 495 were sent to 14 defender organization offices across the state.

FINDINGS

FINDINGS

The following section presents data and findings gathered through the WDA Executive Director interview, the review of the Defender Assistance Program Quarterly Activity Reports, and the survey of program assistance recipients. In the survey, respondents not only were asked to assess the service areas, but also were afforded the opportunity to provide written comments. Thirty individuals provided written comments, and most of them were specific in nature (i.e., relating to a certain area or areas).

Of the 657 surveys sent to potential respondents, there was a 32 percent return rate (n = 210). Within the two respondent groupings, there was a 46 percent return rate for individual members (n = 74) and a 27 percent return rate for those sent to defender organizations (n = 136). Of the 210 individuals who returned completed surveys:

- 0 58.6 percent were attorneys with defender organizations (n = 123)
- 0 5.2 percent were investigators with defender organizations (n = 11)
- 0 5.7 percent were administrators with defender organizations (n = 12)
- 0 1.0 percent were employed in non-identified positions with defender organizations (n = 2)
- 0 26.7 percent were individual member attorneys
 (n = 56)
- 0 1.4 percent were individual member investigators
 (n = 3)
- 0 1.0 percent were individual member administrators
 (n = 2)

1

.5 percent were individual members in non-identified positions (n = 1)

In addition, six surveys were returned without the respondent's name or organizational affiliation or completely blank. Data recorded on these six surveys were not included in the survey analysis. Although 210 individuals returned completed surveys, not all survey items were responded to. For example, only 12 percent of the respondents (n = 25) attended the Gangs & Drugs training session held in February 1992. In order to negate the effect of large numbers of missing cases and control for relatively small case-specific respondent n's, the actual reported n's and valid percents are used in the analysis of survey data.

Thirty of the respondents took the opportunity to provided written comments. Nineteen of those individuals were with defender organizations, and the remaining 11 were individual members. Many of those respondents provided feedback related to more than one Defender Assistance Program service, so the number of written response items reported in the following section is greater than the sum of the written respondent total.

Written comments of a more general nature were provided by 15 of the respondents. Four of these individuals were attorneys with public defender organizations and three of those were decidedly positive in tone:

"Having a defense resource program has been of immense value in that new insights have been available; the C.D. Law assistance has increased our efficiency and ability to prepare more briefs; appellate assistance has helped us insure the record is perfected for better appeal results."

"The response and applicability of information provided by the [Defender] Assistance Program was of the highest quality and extremely valuable to me, although my use was limited only by my need. I have been able to extend much information received throughout much of my practice."

"The Defenders Assistance Program is an extremely helpful tool and certainly should be continued. It is one of the few assistance programs available to defense counsel and it clearly fills an ongoing and ever-expanding need."

"Funding is crucial to continued enforcement of bill of rights/constitution etc."

Four administrators with public defender organizations provided general written comments:

"Pierce County's (DAC) delivery of indigent defense program has found the Washington Defender Association to be competent and effective. The services they provide relevant to funds provided through DCD regarding drug prosecutions is significant benefit and assistance to DAC's defender staff attorneys as well as attorneys (private) appointed through DAC."

"It is essential that the funding for this excellent program be increased. Training is desperately needed for defender organizations. Moreover the prosecutors and police have received so much more funding that the current allocation [to] the defenders is ridiculously low."

"Besides the brief bank, consultation and legal research on particular points of law have been very useful and routinely used. We have asked for and received research assistance on special projects that have helped us to focus on the issue and be better prepared in court."

"Due to the peculiar nature of my position, I have not personally attended training sessions or become involved in making deposits or withdrawals (again, personally) to or from the brief bank. I have, however, had occasion to direct attorneys to training events and the brief bank, and have generally heard positive feedback." One individual, who recorded his position simply as "Assistant", noted:

"My failure thus far to utilize the consultation and brief bank should not be taken as a lack of interest in these services. I'm sure that in time I will utilize both consultation and brief bank."

Six private practice attorneys recorded written comments. Three of these comments were positive in tone, two recorded a need for additional services, and one was highly negative.

"I am happy to have the Defenders Association as a resource. Personnel are supportive, cheerful and energetic."

"This is a very worthwhile program and has proven invaluable to me."

"The establishment of regional offices and consultants on drug and appellate issues have been tremendous step forward!"

"Of approximately 16,000 Washington attorneys, only 4,000 live in eastern Washington. However, much of the drug related cases are in Yakima/Tri-cities area and many of the defendents are Hispanic. We need more information, resources, etc. to balance the equation in court. We need a brief bank over here accessible to the Eastside."

"We need cooperation as to narc's statewide for history and pattern."

"They are going to hang more people in Clark County unless more funds are provided for indigent defense services. Wesley Allen Dodd's appeal is a bad joke by a millionaire attorney who no longer has to make money by working like the rest of us. We realize we are rather far from Seattle/Puget Sound and most people think we belong to Oregon, but our funding comes from Washington State. They pay the county prosecutor and some very bad traffic judges \$100,000 a year, but seem unable to provide a public defender's office in this rapidly growing county of 250,000. Ronald Reagan and George Bush may have doubled the number of millionaires in this country, but they also doubled the number of prisoners. Jails are not an adequate substitute for jobs. We need more defense resources down here.

I am not reimbursed for long distance calls or mailing my indigent cases, so [consultation] resources in Seattle are a bad joke."

Consultations

Consultations were provided upon request to public defenders in 19 of the 39 Washington State counties and also the Washington Appellate Defender Association. There is no "formal" means to request assistance from the Defender Assistance Program; a telephone call is all that is necessary. A contact log is maintained by each of the two program resource attorney's and related data is compiled and submitted to DCD in the Quarterly Activity Reports.

Using data reported to DCD in the Quarterly Activity Reports, which is extracted directly from contact logs maintained by resource attorney, it is found that consultation services have been provided 267 times during the 12 month October 1991 to September 1992 period.





As can be seen in the above chart, the vast majority of consultations were provided over the telephone. Over three of the four quarters, there was overall growth in the number of consultations. During the July - September 1992 quarter, though, there was a sharp decrease in the number of consultations provided. Follow-up with the WDA Executive Director provided the following by way of clarification and explanation:

- 1. The <u>requests</u> for consultation services did not drop during this period.
- 2. The <u>ability</u> to reply to these requests were hampered by the temporary reassignment of program attorney resources to Drug Defense Manual production.

In-person consultation services were provided to 12 separate public defender agencies and five other agencies. Twenty-five site visits were paid to these agencies. The "other" agencies were the Washington Appellate Defenders Association, Division III Court of Appeals, the Washington Defender Association Investigation Division, the Eastern Washington Minority Association, and the Federal Public Defender.



As can be seen in the preceding chart, the number of in-person consultations consistently decreased during each quarterly period. Although the increased time devoted to Drug Defense Manual production can account for part of this trend (i.e., the July through September 1992 period), it cannot account for all of it.

Of the individuals using in-person consultation services 88 percent stated that they were highly satisfied with the service. Eighty-six percent of the respondents recorded that the in-person consultation services were delivered in a very (i.e., "highly") timely manner. The same proportion of respondents recorded that the service/information they received was highly applicable.

In-Person Consultation Services			
		Level	
	High	Medium	Low
Satisfaction Timeliness Applicability	88.1 85.7 85.7	9.5 11.9 11.9	2.4 2.4 2.4
Valid cases = 42	Percent	Percent of population = 20	

Of the respondents who were highly satisfied with the inperson consultation services, 54 percent were attorneys with public defender organizations (it must be remembered, though, that these individuals made up the largest proportion of the respondent pool, 52 percent). Ninety-one percent of these public defender attorneys assigned a "high" satisfaction rating to this means of consultation. This proportion is very similar to the 90 percent of

private practice attorneys who assigned a like rating.

During the target year (October 1991 through September 1992), 242 telephone consultations were provided to public defenders averaging approximately 1.18 hours each and 286 hours total.



Unlike in-person consultations, the number of telephone consultations were consistently increasing over the first three reported quarters. The decrease during the fourth quarter can be attributed to the Drug Defense Manual production scheduling.

NUMBER OF TELEPHONE CONSULTATIONS



The survey of service recipients revealed that a high level of satisfaction was recorded by over four-fifths of the respondents. In addition, both timeliness and applicability were assigned high ratings by the large majority of respondents.

Telephone Consultation Services			
and and an		Level	
	High	Medium	Low
Satisfaction	81.0	19.0	
Timeliness	84.2	14.9	1.8
Applicability	76.8	19.6	3.6
Valid cases = 58	Percent of population = 27.6		

Sixty-two percent of the respondents who assigned a high rating to telephone consultation services were attorneys with public defender organizations. Ninety-one percent of these public attorneys assigned a high rating, and 77 percent of the private practice attorneys also assigned this rating.

Three attorneys with defender organizations provided written comments regarding the consultation services. These comments were mainly concerned with providing praise to Defender Assistance Program resource attorneys.

"The consultation services were excellent. Pat Novotny helped on a number of occasions with research and preparation of briefs. Helped to take average work product and make it special. Her assistance made a difference."

"On a more personal note. I would like to suggest having Kathy Knox here with us has been one to the most positive experiences of our office life. She is incredibly capable, bright, conscientious, quick to provide
insightful assistance, and a joy to associate with. Our whole office has relished her visits and we all wish she could be a permanent "fixture" here. Her ability to quickly spot the key issue and articulate the applicable defense theory we should explore is remarkable. In addition, I've never met anyone who could produce a brief "from scratch" as quickly as she. Any program that has attorney Knox as a participant is indeed fortunate!"

"Felony drug defense is an integral part of my practice as a public defender and anything I can use to help my clients is greatly appreciated. Since Kathy Knox was situated in our office for a time, I had occasion to use many of the services, but also benefited from the dialogue we shared regarding these issues. Office dialogue, sharing of issues and ideas is crucial and Ms. Knox was able to contribute an added perspective. In addition, her ability to focus on an issue and flesh it out during such dialogues was very helpful."

One attorney in private practice stated that:

"I didn't know this service was available."

Training

Over a seven-month period (December 1991 through June 1992), Defender Assistance Program personnel participated in eight workshops and training sessions. This training was conducted either solely by program attorneys or sponsored by the coordinating agency, Washington Defender Association, with program attorney participation (see Appendix C for synopsis of select course offerings).

Individuals participating in these formalized training sessions were awarded Continuing Legal Education (CLE) credits by the Washington Bar Association. Between December 1991 and June 1992, 536 attorneys and investigators participated in these eight training sessions. This training with the location, number of

participants, and number of CLE's awarded, is:

Title	Data	Location	No.	CLE'S
Defending Drug Cases	Dec. '9	1 Spokane	54	6.00
Exceptional Downward Sentencing	Jan. '9	2 Pierce Cnty	7 60	1.00
Gangs and Drugs	Feb. '9	2 Seattle	93	5.25
Making Your Point - War on Drugs	Apr. '9	2 Seattle	120	7.00
Making Your Point - War on Drugs	Apr. '9	2 Spokane	39	7.00
Drug Updates - Defender Conf.	May '9	2 Winthrop	125	1.00
Making Your Point - War on Drugs	May '9	2 Tri-Cities	8	3.25
Advanced Training - War on Drugs	Jun. '9	2 Yakima	37	3.75

Considering that this training was conducted over approximately a seven-month period, a great deal was accomplished. Also, the level of participation seemed to vary. For example, although program staff participated in the "Making Your Point in the War on Drugs" training held in Seattle on April 10, 1992, it would appear that after review of the training curriculum, program staff participated to a greater extent the next day at the Spokane session. The May 1, 1992, training held in Winthrop was part of the <u>1992 Defender Conference</u>, and although only one CLE was awarded for Drug Updates, seven CLE's were awarded for the full two-day training. The "Making Your Point in the War on Drugs" training held on May 13, 1992, entailed a presentation by program staff and review of video-tapes of the Seattle and Spokane training sessions.

It should be noted that not all individuals who attended these training sessions returned completed surveys. For example, according to Defender Assistance Program records, 54 individuals attended the Defending Drug Cases training held in Seattle whereas only 52 individuals out of the 210 respondents noted that they had. Other examples are not as close, and the most disparate example can

be seen in the case of the Exceptional Downward Sentencing training where the Defender Assistance Program states that 60 individuals attended the training, yet only four respondents recorded that they attended. Also, Defender Assistance Program records indicate that eight individuals attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training in the Tri-Cities region but ten surveyed individuals recorded that they had attended this training.

Of the 210 survey respondents, 25 percent (n = 52) attended the Defending Drug Cases training held in Spokane in December 1991. Respondents were, with exception, highly satisfied with the training and felt that the training which they received was highly applicable.

Defending D	rug Cases			
······································		:	Level	
	an she Ang she	High	Medium	Low
Satisfactic Applicabili		71.2 62.5	26.9 29.2	1.9 8.3
Valid cases	= 52	Percent	of populat	ion = 2

Of those respondents who assigned a satisfaction rating to the Defending Drug Cases training, 50 percent were attorneys with public defender agencies. Overall, 51 percent of those assigning a high rating were public attorneys and 38 percent were private attorneys.

A very small percentage of the respondents had attended the Exceptional Downward Sentencing training held in January of 1991

(two percent). Respondents were equally split over their satisfaction assessment, though by 3 to 1 they felt that the training was highly applicable.

Exceptional Downward &	entencing		
	•	Level	
	High	Medium	Low
Satisfaction	50.0	50.0	
Applicability	75.0	25.0	400 (M
Valid cases = 4	Percent	of populat	ion = 1.9

Only public and private attorneys attended this training and they were equally split in their satisfaction assessment.

The largest proportion of respondents who attended the Gangs and Drugs training expressed a medium level of satisfaction. A medium applicability rating was also assigned by roughly threefifths of the respondents. Only 12 percent of the total number of respondents attended this training.

	•	
	Level	
High	Medium	Low
40.0	44.0	16.0
37.5	58.3	4.2
Percent	of populat	ion = 11
	40.0 37.5	High Medium 40.0 44.0

Forty-eight percent of individuals who attended the Gangs and Drugs training were public attorneys, and 36 percent were

· ·

investigators with public agencies. Fifty percent of those who assigned this training a high satisfaction level rating were public attorneys and 20 percent were public investigators.

Approximately three-quarters of the respondents who attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training session held in Seattle were highly satisfied with the training and felt it was highly applicable. Twenty-one percent of the survey respondents had attended this training.

	Drugs (Seat	4441
	Level	<u> </u>
High	Medium	Low
75.0	25.0	، بيني من بين بيني من من بيني من من من من بيني من من بيني من من بيني من من من من من من من من م
		ion = 20.
	75.0 73.2	High Medium 75.0 25.0

Of those individuals who attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in Seattle, 71 percent were attorneys with public agencies. Sixty-seven percent of those assigning a high rating were public attorneys and 21 percent were private practice attorneys.

The Making Your Point in the War on Drugs session held in Spokane was not as highly rated in respect to both satisfaction and applicability as the Seattle session. Over one-half of the Spokane training participants relayed a medium level of satisfaction and exactly one-half recorded that it was highly applicable.

Making Your Point in	the war on	Drugs (Spok	ane)
	·	Level	
	High	Medium	Low
Satisfaction	47.8	52.2	
Applicability	50.0	36.4	13.6
Valid cases = 23	Percent	of populat	ion = 10

Of those individuals who attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in Spokane, 73 percent were attorneys with public agencies. Seventy-three percent of those assigning a high rating were public attorneys, and the remaining 27 percent were private practice attorneys.

Respondents who attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in the Tri-Cities region, were, for the most part, highly satisfied with the training they received. Close to three-quarters of the individuals who attended this training felt that it was highly applicable.

Making	Your Point	in	the	War on	Drugs	(Tri-	Cities)
	<u></u>				Lev	vel	·····
				High	Med	lium	Low
Satisfa	action			60.0	40.	. 0	
Applica	ability			70.0	30.	. 0	
Valid d	cases = 10		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Percen	t of po	opulat	ion = 4

Of those individuals who attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in Tri-Cities, 60 percent were private practice attorneys. Sixty-seven percent of those assigning a high rating were attorneys in private practice, and the remaining 33 percent was split evenly between public agency attorneys and private practice administrators.

Looking across all three regional Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training sessions, it was found that 37 percent of the entire respondent population had attended at least one of the sessions. Sixty-five percent indicated that they were highly satisfied with the training, and 66 percent recorded that this training was highly applicable.

Making	Your	Point	in	the	War or	Drugs	(all	regions)
	· · · ·			1		Lev	vel.	
					High	Med	lium	Low
Satisfa Applica					64.9 65.8	35 30		 4.1
Valid d	ases	= 77			Percer	t of po	opula	tion = 36

Attorneys employed by public defender organizations made up the single largest proportion of training session participants across all three regional training sessions (66 percent). Sixtytwo percent of the high satisfaction ratings overall were assigned by these public attorneys, which is the same proportion of high ratings assigned within this attorney group. Within the private attorney group, though, the high satisfaction rating was assigned by 74 percent of this attorney group.

The Drug Updates - Defender Conference held in Winthrop was

attended by 16 percent of the respondent population. By roughly a three-to-one ratio, respondents recorded that they were both highly satisfied with the training and that it was highly applicable.

Drug Updates - Defende	r Conferen	Ce	
	·····	Level	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	High	Medium	Low
Satisfaction Applicability	70.6 74.2	29.4 25.8	
Valid cases = 34	Percent	of populat	ion = 16.2

Of those individuals who attended the Drug Updates training conducted during the May 1992 Defender Conference, 61 percent were public agency attorneys. Fifty-four percent of those respondents who assigned a high satisfaction rating were public attorneys, and 29 percent were private practice attorneys. It should be noted, though, that all private practice attorneys who attended this training session and responded to this survey assigned a high satisfaction rating.

Almost ten percent of the respondents attended the Advanced Training in the War on Drugs session held in Yakima. More respondents rated the training as being highly applicable than were highly satisfied.

Advanced Training in	the War on	Drugs	
		Level	
	High	Medium	Low
Satisfaction	65.0	35.0	
Applicability	73.7	26.3	
Valid cases = 20	Percent	of populat	ion = 9.5
Constraints and an and a second s			

Of those who attended the Advanced Training in the War on Drugs, 50 percent were public agency attorneys and 35 percent were attorneys in private practice. Of those assigning a high rating to this training, 46 percent were public attorneys and 31 percent were private attorneys.

For the eight training sessions held during the seven month December 1991 to June 1992 period, a relatively high level of satisfaction was recorded by the respondents who had attended training. Only two training sessions (Gangs and Drugs, and the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs held in Spokane) realized less than a 50 percent participant high satisfaction. Only one training session (Gangs and Drugs) had fewer than 50 percent of the participants stating that the training was largely applicable.

Four defender organization attorneys provided written comments regarding the training. Two of these comments provided suggestions for future training and two an assessment of applicability:

"I am a dependency attorney, and therefore, did not attend seminar on drugs, etc. I would be interested in any seminar dealing with trial skills in general or with dependencies."

26

"Offer this in Seattle." [Re: Defending Drug Cases training session]

Training "[n]ot helpful to appellate work."

"...the seminars never really provided a sophisticated tool for the experienced attorneys."

One investigator attached to a defender organization provided

written input:

"As an investigator, I don't feel my field or role in public defense is adequately addressed by WDA, probably because it does not receive the funding necessary to put on investigator relevant seminars."

One investigator in private practice offered a suggestion for future training and provided an assessment on another WDA training session:

"Being an Investigator and working in criminal defense, I would like to encourage more workshops for the investigators. I would also like to credit the Defender Association with the October 23, 1992, seminar for Investigators on "Child Sexual Abuse." Being a retired police officer and having taken courses at the Washington State Criminal Justice Training Center, I would put this as one of the best classes I have ever attended. I hope more of these types of training become available in the future."

Brief Bank

The Defender Assistance Program coordinates the computerized brief bank administered by WDA. Defenders throughout the state are solicited for relevant legal briefs. A resource form was developed by program staff to collect this material. In all, 34 briefs have been collected by the program (see Appendix D for a copy of the resource form and a listing of the briefs).

Survey data revealed that 20.5 percent (n = 43) of the survey respondents had used the WDA brief bank. Twenty-four individuals indicated that they used the brief bank at least twice; nine individuals three times each; and one individual each five times, six times, eight times, nine times, and ten times. One individual recorded that she accessed the brief bank 36 times during a 12month period. In total, 39 individuals accessed the brief bank 137 times. Four respondents stated that they had used the brief bank but did not indicate how many times or during what period of time.

Respondents were also asked if they had submitted material to the brief bank. Fifteen individuals recorded that they had submitted material (7.1 percent). These 15 respondents, all attorneys, represented 34.9 percent of the individuals who had accessed the brief bank for material. Six individuals submitted one brief each, three individuals submitted two briefs each, four individuals submitted three briefs each, and one individual submitted eight briefs. In total, 34 briefs were submitted by these 15 attorneys to the WDA brief bank.

Of the 43 individuals who accessed the brief bank, 74 percent were highly satisfied with the overall service. In addition, 86 percent rated the timeliness of the material and service as being high, and 66 percent recorded that the material accessed was highly applicable.

		Level		
Brief Bank	High	Medium	Low	
Satisfaction	74.4	25.6		
Timeliness	85.7	14.3		
Applicability	65.9	34.1		
Valid cases = 43	Percent	of populat	ion = 20.	

Of those respondents who recorded a level of satisfaction with the brief bank, 61 percent were attorneys employed by public defender agencies. These public attorneys provided 53 percent of the high ratings for the brief bank and private practice attorneys provided 38 percent. Within each of these two sectors, though (i.e., public and private), private practice attorneys, as a group, were more satisfied with the brief bank than were public agency attorneys. Eighty-six percent of the attorneys in private practice assigned a high rating to the brief bank, whereas only 65 percent of the public agency attorneys provided this high rating.

Two attorneys with public defender organizations commented on the brief bank resource:

"I have only recently started trying felony drug cases. I expect to be using these services more in the upcoming months. Although I have not directly requested materials from the brief bank, I have received some "hand me downs" that I found very useful."

"No, [I have not utilized Brief Bank resources] but I now will."

DefenseNET Newsletter

As noted in the Methods section of this report, all

individuals on the WDA DefenseNET mailing list were sent a copy of the survey instrument. This being the case, it is not surprising that a relatively larger proportion of individuals responded to the DefenseNET assessment item than all the preceding items. In total, 90 percent of the respondents provided an assessment of DefenseNET (n = 189).

		L	evel	
DefenseNET	High	Medium	Low	Missing
Satisfaction	77.8	22.2		
Timeliness	75.1	22.8	.5	1.6
Applicability	73.5	24.9	.5	1.1
Valid cases = 189		Percent of	populatio	n = 90.0

Across all three assessment categories, approximately threequarters of the respondents assigned high ratings to the DefenseNET Fifty-nine percent of the respondents who assigned a publication. satisfaction rating were attorneys with public defender The next largest category of respondents were organizations. attorneys in private practice (27 percent). Sixty-one percent of those individuals who assigned a high rating were public agency attorneys and 27 percent were private attorneys.

Four attorneys provided generally positive feedback regarding the DefenseNET newsletter:

"The newsletter was a decent summary of new cases and analyses... "

"I am presently assigned to the Misdemeanor Unit. Most of the materials are specifically oriented toward felony drug cases, but I have found the information helpful even for the misdemeanor cases. Please continue the good work, I appreciate it."

"I like the DefenseNET, it's kind of the like getting a caselaw update on (specialized) drug stuff. I wish it came out more often or more frequently."

"... the DefenseNET publication is an excellent tool."

One investigator attached to a public defender organization recorded a written comment on DefenseNET applicability:

"Directed more for attorney use, but I sometimes find it useful to me."

In addition, one public defender agency administrator offered

a succinct assessment:

"DefenseNET is invaluable."

Three attorneys in private practice offered written comments on the DefenseNET publication:

"DefenseNET is the best thing to happen to criminal defense in Washington during the 17 years I've been practicing criminal law."

"Outstanding, very useful."

"It's difficult for me to read them all." [i.e., cases/information provided in DefenseNET]

A copy of DefenseNET can be found in Appendix E.

Drug Defense Manual

The Defender Assistance Program started work on the Drug Defense Manual (publication title, <u>Defense of a Drug Case</u>) during its first recent year of funding, 1991 (SFY 1992). The manual was completed in January 1993 and is close to 600 pages in length. It was constructed largely through Defender Assistance Program

resource attorney efforts with assistance provided by a number of other WDA staff. Much of the material contained in its pages was also published in the DefenseNET newsletter and is organized around three main sections of eight subsections each.

These three main sections are, Overview, Strategies and Tactics, and Applicable Law. Each of these main sections contains subsections addressing eight central issues: Pre-Arraignment, Arraignment, Pretrial Proceedings, the Trial, Post-Trial Proceedings, Sentencing, Appeal, and Other Consequences of a Felony Drug conviction. Appendix F includes the manuals Table of Contents and preceding pages.

During January and February, 1993, the manual was distributed to all 657 individuals on the DefenseNET mailing list. In addition, during this distribution period, 12 training sessions were held throughout the state related to the organization and utility of the manual. Feedback solicitied by WDA trainers from the training participants has been developed into recommendations for future modification (e.g., a "forms" section).

Amicus Curiae

During the first 18 months of program operation, five amicus curiae (friend of the court) briefs were filed by program resource attorney staff. Assessment of impact is difficult with this form of technical assistance. In short, written feedback from respondents indicated a high level of satisfaction with briefs composed by resource attorney program staff.

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Į

Í

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Defender Assistance Program received its first year of U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA), funds in 1988. Four years later this program was funded once again. During State Fiscal Year 1992, the Defender Assistance Program received 2.2 percent of these BJA funds, and during State Fiscal Year 1993 it received 3.13 percent.

This program has six primary goals:

0

- 1. Providing consultation services to public defenders throughout the state.
- 2. Conducting and participating in local and regional continuing legal education training.
- 3. Contributing to the Washington Defender Association brief bank.
- 4. Producing and distributing the DefenseNET Newsletter.
- 5. Producing and distributing a Drug Defense Manual.
- 6. Appearing in court as **amicus curiae** in "cases involving broad impact" and providing other legal assistance.

Assessment of program performance was accomplished through the analysis of data and information obtained through interviews with the Washington Defender Association Executive Director, a review of Quarterly Activity Reports, and a survey instrument circulated to all individuals on the DefenseNET mailing list (defender organizations and individual members). A 32 percent return rate was obtained on the surveys circulated to 657 potential respondents (n = 210) and of these:

58.6 percent were attorneys with defender organizations (n = 123)

26.7 percent were individual member attorneys (n = 56)0 5.7 percent were administrators with defender organi-0 zations (n = 12)5.2 percent were investigators with defender organi-0 zations (n = 11)1.4 percent were individual member investigators (n = 3)0 1.0 percent were employed in non-identified positions 0 with defender organizations (n = 2)0 1.0 percent were individual member administrators (n = 2).5 percent were individual members in non-identified Ö positions (n = 1)

General written comments were provided by 15 of the respondents. Of these, only one was negative in tone, and most called for an increase in funding. By and large, the majority recorded a continued need and support for the program and its resources.

It must be kept in mind, though, that the individuals who recorded these observations were largely attorneys with defender organizations. In fact, 59 percent of the respondents were attorneys with defender organizations, but this represents only a 27 percent return rate for defender organization personnel. In short, there is an inherent bias in the large number of defender organization personnel (75 percent) in the potential respondent pool. Although individuals in private practice (i.e., "individual members") made up only 25 percent of the potential respondent pool, this group realized a 46 percent return rate.

Consultation Services

Consultation services are provided upon request by program resource attorney staff.

- O Between October 1991 and September 1992, 267 consultations were provided.
- O Except for one quarter (July September 1992), the number of telephone consultations increased while the number of in-person consultations decreased.
- O 25 in-person consultations were provided to 17 separate agencies/offices.
- O Related to satisfaction, timeliness, and applicability, over 85 percent of the total number of respondents assigned a "high" rating to in-person consultation services.
- O 242 telephone consultations were provided averaging approximately 1.18 hours each for a total of 286 hours.
- O Over 75 percent of the respondents assigned a "high" rating to the areas of satisfaction, timeliness, and applicability of telephone consultation services.

Four attorneys provided written feedback. Three of these individuals were with defender organizations and all provided highly positive input regarding the program resource attorney who provided the assistance. The fourth attorney was in private practice and he stated that he wasn't aware that the consultation service was available.

Regarding in-person consultation services, none were provided to individuals in private practice, though a number of telephone consultations were provided to private practice attorneys. Only 48 percent of the respondents (n = 100) recorded that they received one of these forms of consultation. The remaining 52 percent did not record an assessment of the service, so it can be assumed that they were unaware of its existence or were of the opinion that they could not benefit from it. Either way, it can be recommended that:

The availability of this resource be made better known to individuals with both public defender organizations and in private practice. The DefenseNET Newsletter would appear to be an ideal vehicle for this.

Training

Over a seven-month period, program staff participated in the provision of Continuing Legal Education training to 536 attorneys and investigators.

- O 25 percent of the respondents attended the Defending Drug Cases training held in Spokane; 71 percent stated they were highly satisfied and 63 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- O Only two percent of the respondents attended the Exceptional Downward Sentencing training held in Pierce County; 50 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 75 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- 0 12 percent of the respondents attended the Gangs and Drugs training held in Seattle; 40 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 38 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- O 21 percent of the respondents attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in Seattle; 75 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 73 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
 - 11 percent of the respondents attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in Spokane; 48 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 50 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- 0 5 percent of the respondents attended the Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training held in the Tri-cities

36

area; 60 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 70 percent stated that it was highly applicable.

37 percent of the respondents attended a Making Your Point in the War on Drugs training session; 65 percent of the respondents stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 66 percent stated that it was highly applicable.

0

0

- 16 percent of the respondents attended the Drug Updates -Defender Conference held in Winthrop; 71 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 74 percent stated that it was highly applicable.
- 0 10 percent of the respondents attended the Advanced Training in the War on Drugs training held in Yakima; 65 percent stated they were highly satisfied with the training and 74 percent stated that it was highly applicable.

Six individuals took the opportunity to provide written feedback regarding the training. Four of these were attorneys with defender organizations; two of them offered suggestions for future training and two indicated that they did not find the training helpful. The two investigators who responded, one attached to a defender organization and one in private practice, offered the suggestion that more training be geared toward the needs of the investigator.

It is recognized that it is highly unlikely that a given respondent would attend all eight training sessions. The percentage of respondents who attended these training sessions ranged from two percent to 25 percent. There was a great deal of variation in the respondents satisfaction level and assessment of training applicability. Further, most of the written comments indicated that, at least among these respondents, training

relevance is an issue. Therefore, it is recommended that:

The training needs of both public and private practice attorneys and investigators be assessed and a mechanism be developed to measure participant satisfaction (e.g., training evaluation forms).

Brief Bank

Twenty-one percent of survey respondents recorded that they used the WDA brief bank.

- O These individuals accessed the brief bank over 137 time.
- O A high satisfaction rating was assigned by 74 percent of the respondents.
- O A high timeliness rating was assigned by 86 percent of the respondents.
- O A high applicability rating was assigned by 66 percent of the respondents.

Two attorneys with public defender organizations commented on brief bank resources. Both indicated that although they have not used this resource in the past, they will in the future.

Approximately one-fifth of the respondents indicated that they used brief bank resources. Most individuals recorded a high level of satisfaction with the resource and found service very timely. Fewer respondents felt that the applicability of the resource was high. Only seven percent of the respondents recorded that they had submitted material to the brief bank. It is recommended that:

> A greater effort be made to solicit briefs from attorneys in both public and private practice which would reflect the needs of WDA members.

DefenseNET Newsletter

Ninety percent of the respondents provided an assessment of the DefenseNet Newsletter.

0 78 percent assigned a high satisfaction rating.

0 75 percent assigned a high timeliness rating.

0 74 percent assigned a high applicability rating.

Nine individuals provided written feedback related to the DefenseNET Newsletter. Without exception, whether attorney or investigator in public or private practice, no one provided a negative assessment.

By approximately three to one, respondents assigned high ratings to DefenseNET timeliness and applicability, as well as overall satisfaction. No recommendations are offered regarding this publication.

Drug Defense Manual

/

The Drug Defense Manual took nearly one and one-half years to complete. Considering the scope and complexity of the work, this is understandable. Written comments offered by respondents reflect a high level of satisfaction, if not outright praise, regarding the briefs composed by these program attorneys.

As noted, the Drug Defense Manual has only recently been distributed. It is recommended, though, that:

• Recommendations obtained from individuals attending training conducted by WDA staff be incorporated in future revisions.

Amicus Curiae

Due to the unique nature of amicus curiae work, no recommendations are offered. It should be noted that written responses indicate a high level of satisfaction with this form of assistance.

APPENDIX A:

Î

8

Ì

Î

STATE DRUG POLICY ADVISORY BOARD

WA DRUG POLICY BOARD MEMBERS

Judi Kosterman* Special Assistant to the Governor for Substance Abuse Issues Post Office Box 43113 Olympia, WA 98504-3113 (206) 586-0827 SCAN 321-0827 FAX 586-8380

James C. Scott/Pat Executive Director Criminal Justice Training Commission Campus of St. Martin's College Post Office Box 40905 Olympia, WA 98504-0905 (206) 459-6342 SCAN 585-6342 FAX 459-6347

Chase Riveland, Secretary Department of Corrections Capital Center Building Post Office Box 41101 Olympia, WA 98504-1101 (206) 753-2500 SCAN 234-2500 FAX 586-9055

Alternate: Ruben Cedeno Department of Corrections Capitol Center Building Post Office Box 41101 Olympia, WA 98504-1101 (206) 753-7400 SCAN 234-7400 FAX 586-9055 The Honorable Larry V. Erickson Spokane County Sheriff's Department County-City Public Safety Building Spokane, WA 99260 (509) 456-4739 SCAN 272-4739 FAX (509) 456-5641

Alternate: Undersheriff Ron Dashiell Spokane County Sheriff's Department County-City Public Safety Building Spokane, WA 99260 (509) 446-4739 SCAN 272-4739 FAX (509) 456-5641

Paul Trause, Secretary DSHS/Carla Office Building 2 Twelfth and Franklin Post Office Box 45020 Olympia, WA 98504-5020 (206) 753-3395 SCAN 234-3395

Alternate: Ken Stark, Director/Linda DSHS, Alcohol and Substance Division Twelfth & Franklin Post Office Box 45330 Olympia, WA 98504-5330 (206) 438-8200 SCAN 585-8200

* means non-voting member

Alternate: David Brenna DSHS, Alcohol and Substance Division Post Office Box 45720 Olympia, WA 98504-5720 (206) 438-8076 SCAN 585-8076 FAX 438-8078

Kathryn (Kit) Bail, Chair/Donna Indeterminate Sentence Review Board Capitol Center Building 401 West Fifth Avenue Post Office Box 40907 Olympia, WA 98504-0907 (206) 493-9266

Janet McLane/Naomi Administrator for the Courts 1206 South Quince Post Office Box 41170 Olympia, WA 98504-1170 (206) 753-3365 SCAN 234-3365 FAX 586-8869

David L. Fallen/Sharon Sentencing Guidelines Commission 3410 Capital Boulevard Post Office Box 40927 Olympia, WA 98504-0927 (206) 753-3084 SCAN 234-3084 FAX 753-6620

Michael Redman Executive Secretary WA Association of Prosecuting Attorneys 206 - 10th Avenue SE Olympia, WA 98501 (206) 753-2175 SCAN 234-2175 FAX 753-3943 Ann Daley, Director* Office of Financial Management Post Office Box 43113 Olympia, WA 98504-3113 (206) 753-5451 SCAN 234-5451

Chief Roger W. Bruett WA State Patrol Post Office Box 42601 Olympia, WA 98504-2601 (206) 753-6545 SCAN 234-6545 FAX 664-0663

Alternate: Deputy Chief Frank Russell WA State Patrol Post Office Box 42601 Olympia, WA 98504-2601 (206) 753-6548 SCAN 234-6548 FAX 664-0663

The Honorable Marlin Appelwick WA State Representative 2611 Northeast 125th, #125 Seattle, WA 98125 (206) 545-6570 Olympia 786-7886

Alternate: Bill Perry * House Judiciary Committee John L. O'Brien Building Post Office Box 40691 Olympia, WA 98504-0691 (206) 786-7123

The Honorable Joe Hawe/Karen Clallam County Sheriff's Department 223 East 4th Street Port Angeles, WA 98362 (206) 452-7831 SCAN 575-8931 FAX 452-0470 Michelle Aguilar Executive Director Governor's Office of Indian Affairs Post Office Box 40909 Olympia, WA 98504-0909 (206) 753-2411 SCAN 234-2411 FAX 586-3653

Christie Hedman Executive Director WA State Defender Association 810 Thrid Avenue, Suite 800 Seattle, WA 98104 (206) 623-4321 FAX 447-2349

Alternate: Sally Harrison WA State Defender Association 810 Third Avenue, Suite 800 Seattle, WA 98104 (206) 754-4897 FAX 447-2349

The Honorable John Ladenburg Prosecutor Pierce County Prosecutor's Office 930 Tacoma Avenue South Room 946 Tacoma, WA 98402 (206) 591-7586 SCAN 236-7586 FAX 596-6636

The Honorable Pat Berndt/Debbie Mayor, City of Yakima Yakima City Hall 129 North 2nd Street Yakima, WA 98901 (509) 575-6050 FAX 575-6107 The Honorable Norman Rice Mayor, City of Seattle 600 - 4th Avenue Seattle, WA 98104 (206) 684-4000 FAX 684-5360

Alternate: Andrew Lofton/Pat Deputy Chief of Staff 600 - 4th Avenue Seattle, WA 98104 (206) 684-8869 FAX 684-5360

The Honorable Gary Nelson WA State Senator 106-A Institutions Building Post Office Box 40421 Olympia, WA 98504-0421 (206) 786-7640

Alternate: Dick Armstrong* Senate Judiciary Committee 435 Cherberg Building Olympia, WA 98504 (206) 786-7462

The Honorable Irv Newhouse WA State Senator 403 Legislative Building Post Office Box 40415 Olympia, WA 98504-0415 (206) 786-7684

Alternate: Cindi Holmstrom* Fiscal Analyst Senate Ways and Means Committee 300 Cherberg Building Post Office Box 40484 Olympia, WA 98504-0484 (206) 786-7715 The Honorable Gary F. Locke WA State Representative 204 John L. O'Brien Building Post Office Box 40674 Olympia, WA 98504-0674 (206) 786-7838

Alternate:

Maureen Morris* Appropriations Committee John L. O'Brien Building Room 217 Post Office Box 40740 Olympia, WA 98504-0740 (206) 786-7152

Lawrence L. Lusardi Drug Enforcement Administration 220 West Mercer, Room 301 Seattle, WA 98119 (206) 553-5443

The Honorable Sandi Strawn Benton County Commissioner Post Office Box 190 Prosser, WA 99350 (509) 786-5600/Joanne

The Honorable Barbara Skinner Pierce County Council 930 Tacoma Avenue South Tacoma, Washington 98402 (206) 591-7777 SCAN 236-7777 Fax 591-7509

Douglas Mah* Research Coordinator Office of Financial Management Statistical Analysis Center Post Office Box 43113 Olympia, WA 98504-3113 (206) 753-9638 SCAN 234-9638 Mary Poole* Fiscal Analyst Senate Ways & Means Committee 300 Cherberg Building Post Office Box 40484 Olympia, WA 98504-0484 (206) 786-7715 FAX 786-7615

Mike Mattlick Washington State Patrol Post Office Box 42601 Olympia, WA 98504-2601

APPENDIX B:

Î

......

Î

Î

SURVEY INSTRUMENT

Respondent N	ame :					<u> </u>	يعمد
Title/Role:						: 	-
Office/Organ	ization:		: 				
Date:							,
Please identif Assistance fund							ce
A. Consul	tation Service	es	Yes (see ite	m 1)	No	
B. Traini	ng & Seminar A	Activities*	Yes (see ite	m 2)	No	
C. Brief	Bank		Yes (see ite	m 3)	No	
	g and seminar		Yes (which the			•	ce
* Trainin			· · · · · ·	Defend		•	
 Trainin Program Title Defending Exception Gangs and Making Yo Making Yo Drug Upda Making Yo 	g and seminar has participa Drug Cases al Downward Se	ated in are: entencing r on Drugs r on Drugs r Conference r on Drugs	vhich the Dat Dec Jan Feb Apr Apr May May	Defend • 1991 • 1992 • 1992 • 1992 • 1992 • 1992 • 1992 1992	er As	ssistan Locatio Spokan Pierce	e Cn e e e e e p ti

Telephone () () ()

45

0

0 0 0 0 0

2. Please place a check mark in front of the training activities which you have participated in and indicate the appropriate rating. (See list on page 1, for dates and locations.)

Check Here Title	Sat. Hi	isfact Med	ion Low		App] Hi	licabi Med	lity Low
Defending Drug Cases	0	0	0	: · · · · ·	0	0	0
Exceptional Downward Sentencin	g ()	0	0		0	0	0
Gangs and Drugs	0	0	0		0	0	0
Making Your Point-War on Drugs	0	0	0		0	0	0
Making Your Point-War on Drugs	0	0	0		0	0	0
Drug Updates - Defender Conf.	0	0	0		0	0	0
Making Your Point-War on Drugs		0	0		0	0	0
Advanced Training-War on Drugs	0	0	0		,0	0	0

3a. Have you utilized the Defender Assistance Program maintained Brief Bank?



3b. Asides from utilizing the Defender Assistance Program maintained Brief Bank, have you submitted material for inclusion?



3c. Please provide the following Brief Bank assessment:

		isfact Med			Neline Med		Appl Hi	icabi Med	
Brief Bank	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.	0
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
4. Regardin DefenseN							ogram pub	licat	ion,
	Sati Hi	Lsfact Med	cion Low	Tim Hi	eline Med		Appl Hi	icabi Med	
DefenseNET	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
					-	1			
Please use th wish to recor	d any a	additi	ional cor	mments.	ach ac	lditiona			you
Please retu					the at	tached	еплеторе	, DY	
Please retu If the enve		Jan	uary 15,	<u>, 1993</u> .				- 	

.



APPENDIX C:

SYNOPSIS OF SELECT COURSE OFFERINGS

PROGRAM

8:00am	RegistrationADVANCED TRAINING THE WAR ON DRUGS Yakima, 06/26/92
8:30-9:15	Drug Updates, Kathy Knox and Pat Novotny
9:15-10:15	Suppression of Evidence, Jeffrey Steinborn
10:15-10:30	Break
10:30-11:00	Wiretaps, Richard Smith
11:00-11:30	Confidential Informants, Rafael Gonzales
11:30-12:00	Tactics & Techniques in the Defense of Drug Cases, Diana G. Parker
12:00-12:15	Roundtable Discussion



Rafael Gonzales is an attorney with the Yakima County Department of Assigned Counsel. After graduating from Gonzaga Law School as a Thomas More Scholar in 1986, he clerked for Judge Stanley Worswick and was in private practice for a year and a half.

Kathy Knox serves Eastern Washington as a Drug Defense Resource Attorney with the Washington Defender Association. Prior to joining WDA in October of 1991, she was a Law Clerk in the Division III Court of Appeals for a year and was in private practice in the Tri-Cities for ten years.

Pat Novotny has served Western Washington as a Drug Defense Resource Attorney with the Washington Defender Association since October 1991. Prior to joining WDA, she was a staff attorney at the Washington Appellate Defender for two and a half years and a sole practitioner from 1986-1989.

Diana G. Parker received her JD in 1986 from Willamette University College of Law in Salem, Oregon. After graduation, she was in private practice in Yakima and worked as part of the defense team on a death penalty case. She has worked as a defense attorney, mainly handling drug cases, with the Yakima County Department of Assigned Counsel since the opening of the office in November, 1989.

Richard A. Smith received his JD from the University of Puget Sound Law School in 1984. He practices with the law firm of Smith Law Offices in Yakima. His practice emphasizes criminal defense, particularly drug cases.

Jeffrey Steinborn has been in private practice for more than twenty years. He specializes in the law of search and seizure and is a local spokesperson for NORML and highly recommends their annual meeting in Key West. Jeff is a 1968 graduate of Yale Law School.

IN
1992 Defender Conference Schedule Winthrop May 1-3, 1992

7 CLE Credits

Attorney Program

Friday, May 1

1:00 pm	Registration
1:30 pm	Legislative Update Bob Boruchowitz
2:00 pm	Entrapment in Drug Cases Ellen Yaroshefsky
3:00 pm	Break
3:15 pm	Drug Updates Kathy Knox and Pat Novotny
4:15 pm	Extradition Jon Ostlund and Dan Fessler
5:00 pm	Adjournment
6:00 pm	Social Hour (No-Host Bar)
7:00 pm	Dianer

Saturday, May 2

9:00 am	Impeachment, The Government Can Give It Out But Can They Take It? Jeff Robinson
10:00 am	Using the Court of Appeals to Fix Trial Court Mistakes Julie Kesler, Carol Ellerby, and Mary Perdue
10:45 am	Break
11:00 am	The Developmentally Disabled in the Special Commitment Center Bill Jaquette
11:30 am	Civilization and Its Discontents: Life As A Defense Astorney Ellen Yaroshefsky

12:30 pmAdjournment12:45-2:30 pmDirectors' Meeting6:00 pmSocial Hour (No-Host Bar)7:00 pmWestern Barbecue

Investigator Program

This is first in a series on the criminal process. Detective Sonny Davis's presentation will cover the crime scene and the development of a suspect.

Friday, May 1

1:00 pm	Registration
1:30 pm	Introduction and Overview
1:45 pm	Basic Crime Scene Protocols
2:45 pm	Break
3:00 pm	Crime Scene Reconstruction (Based on an adjudicated 1984 double homicide case.)
5:00 pm	Adjournment

Saturday, May 2

9:00 am	Who Done It? (A crime scene reconstruction using an unsolved 1990 homicide case which occurred in North Seattle.)
11:00 am	Break
11:15 am	Round Table Discussion
12:30 pm	Adjournment

Making Your Point in the War on Drugs

Seattle Friday, April 10 Radisson Airport Hotel

8:30	Registration
9-10	Suppression Hearings: Selling (Educating) Your Judge Jeffrey Steinborn
10-10:45	Chain of Custody: How? When? Why? Julie Spector
10:45-11	Break
11-12	Defending the Defenseless Drug Case James K. Jenkins
12-1	Lunch Break
1-2	How to Handle Confidential Informants Gail Shifman
2-3	Voir Dire: Working the Jury Panel: Anne Harper, Al Kitching, Dave Neupert, Nancy Horgan
3-3:15	Break
3:15-4:15	Drug Testing Washington State Patrol Crime Lab Representatives William Gresham and Edward Suzuki
4:15-4:45	Judicial Perspective on Sentencing in Drug Cases Judge Robert Lasnik
4:45-5:00	The Future of Sentencing (Legislative Update) Mike Frost

Spokane Saturday, April 11 Spokane-Sheraton Hotel

8:30	Registration
9-9:45	Pending Appellate Cases and Perspectives on Appeals Paul Wasson
9:45-10:45	Suppression Hearings: Selling (Educating) Your Judge Jeffrey Steinborn
10:45-11	Break
11-12	Defending the Defenseless Drug Case James K. Jenkins
12-1	Lunch Break
1-2	How to Handle Confidential Informants Gail Shifman
2-3	What's Happening in Drug Cases and What To Do About It Rafael Gonzales and Kathy Knox
3-3:15	Break
3:15-4:15	Drug Testing Washington State Patrol Crime Lab Representative Darrell Brender
4:15-4:45	Wire Taps: Current Issues Richard A. Smith
4:45	Adjourn 51

	Defending Drug Cases: Select Issues 12/13/93 Cavanaugh's Inn at The Park West 303 North River Drive, Spokane, Washington
8:30	• Registration
9:00-9:45	• How to Protect Defendants in State Court from Later Federal Consequences
	Michael Kinkley
9:45-10:30	• General Principles Regarding Preservation of Error in State Court
	Bryan Harnetiaux
10:30-10:45	• Break
10:45-11:15	Multicultural Perspectives
	Rafael Gonzales
11:15-Noon	• Voir Dire: How to Shape the Jury
	Mark Vovos
Noon-1:00	• Lunch Break
1:00-2:15	• The Year In Review: Appellate Cases
	Patricia Novotny and Katherine Knox
2:15-3:00	• Suppression of Evidence
	The Honorable John A. Schultheis
3:00-4:00	• The Prosecution and Defense of Drug Cases: Local Trends.
52	Panel Discussion

÷

ľ

APPENDIX D:

1

Í

BRIEF BANK RESOURCE FORM

AND

LIST OF COLLECTED BRIEFS

	DefenseNE Coordinating Drug Defense	-
To:	Patricia Novotny/Katherine Kn Washington Defender Associa 810 Third Avenue, Suite 800 Seattle, WA 98104	
From:		
Date:	•	
Re:	Charging Practices	Confessions
	Confidential Informant Entrapment	Discovery Abuse Forfeiture
• .	Forensics Jury Instructions	Information Police Misconduct
	Prosecutor Misconduct Sentencing Other:	Search and Seizure Severance

Describe: (use back for additional space if necessary)

Your experiences, comments, and suggestions are vital to the success of our Drug Defense Resource Network. Thanks for taking the time to send us this information! Please feel free to call us if we can be of assistance. Pat Novotny's telephone and fax number is (206)624-1101. Kathy Knox's telephone number is (509)454-5399. The Association Office telephone number is (206)623-4321 and the fax number is (206)623-5420.

WDA's Seattle Brief Bank

1. City attorney's brief and Appellant's brief for Washington State Supreme Court regarding constitutionality of Tacoma Drug Loitering Statute. <u>City of Tacoma v. John Luvene</u>.

2. Appellant's brief in Div. II regarding whether crime of Conspiracy to Deliver a Controlled Substance under 69.50.407 is an unranked felony under the Sentencing Reform Act. <u>State v. Herbert</u>.

3. Appellant's brief in Div. III regarding failure of proof and constitutionality of School Bus zone enhancement. <u>State v. Wimbs</u>.

4. Motion to Suppress Evidence based on "consent" search. "Knock and Talk" leading to consent to search home. <u>State v. Glaspie</u>.

5. Motion to declare the seriousness level of VUCSA (Delivery) to be six, based on unconstitutionality of the statute purporting to raise its seriousness level. <u>State v. Bradley</u>.

6. Motion to dismiss for lack of evidence that more than a "trace of residue" of cocaine was found in charge of possession. <u>State v.</u> <u>Anderson</u>.

7. Motion to Dismiss for lack of particularity in warrant. Form language stating that warrant allows the search of all persons, coming and going, and their vehicles. <u>State v. White</u>.

8. Memorandum on burden of proof. Issue: Who has the burden of proof with regard to the lack of a prescription for Lorazepam? <u>State v. DeLeau</u>.

9. Motion to Suppress based on officer's lack of articulable facts justifying stop. <u>State v. Johnson</u>.

10. Appellant's brief in Court of Appeals regarding whether a custodial arrest violates Art. 1 section 7 when the arrest was for a misdemeanor traffic offense and there was no reasonable belief that Appellant would not respond to a citation and notice to appear if issued one?

11. Motion to exclude alleged co-conspirator statements. <u>State v.</u> <u>Hinton</u>.

12. Motion to Suppress. Illegal Search and Seizure. Automobile stop based on one cross of street dividing line. Stop for possible DWI. Miranda violations after the stop... <u>State v. Molina</u>.

13. Defense memorandum on UA testing as part of Community Supervision.

14. Appellant's brief in Div. I regarding informant reliability and Washington' Privacy act as it relates to Police authorized electronic eavesdropping without prior judicial approval.

15. Motion to Dismiss and request for Bill of Particulars for charge of "Attempted Possession." Analysis of "attempt" statute.

16. Appellant's brief in Div. III regarding buyer charged with delivery. <u>State v. Cummins</u>.

17. Amicus brief on "Casual Street Encounter" State v. Gleason.

18. Appellant's brief on Constitutional "single subject" requirement as applied to delivery offense and the "Omnibus Alcohol and Controlled Substances Act."

19. List of relevant cases dealing with disclosure of informants.

20. Memorandum/Article on Post-Trial Drug Testing: Is it Susceptible to Due Process Challenges?

21. Amicus Brief in Washington State Supreme Court on exceptional sentence downward to include drug treatment for addicted offenders. <u>State v. Gaines</u>.

22. Memorandum: High Crime Area Stops. A summary of current case law.

23. Appellant's Brief and State's Brief in Washington State Supreme Court on the use of infrared detection devises or scanners.

24. Paper presented by Northwest Immigrant Rights Project. "Immigration Consequences of Criminal Convictions."

25. Motion to Suppress based on pretext stop or arrest for minor traffic infraction. Also includes outlined summary of case law.

26. Form for <u>Knapstad</u> motion. Article regarding same.

27. Motion to Suppress. Pedestrian stop. Issue of whether contact initiated by officers was a "seizure."

28. Motion to Dismiss for Prosecutorial Misconduct. <u>State v.</u> Jones. Article on same subject.

29. Article and Outline on Suppression Hearings.

30. Memorandum and Motion to Suppress based on warrantless home entry to effect an arrest. <u>State v. Daugherty</u>.

31. Motion to Dismiss. Privacy Act and wiretap issues.

32. Amicus Brief in Washington State Supreme Court regarding heat and energy scans. <u>State v. Young</u>.

33. Amicus Brief by WDA in Court of Appeals, Division III, <u>State</u> <u>v. Graham</u>, re: applicability of RCW 69.50.435 (school zone enhancements) to accomplices. 34. Amicus Brief by WDA in Washington Supreme Court regarding school bus stops as school zones. <u>State v. Coria</u>.

ľ

1

Į

F

ſ

.

APPENDIX E:

Î

1

DefenseNET NEWSLETTER



WASHINGTON DEFENDER ASSOCIATION

Eastern Washington Report Kathy Knox

The Drug Defense Manual is nearly finished and will be published in October. WDA wants to thank everyone for their patience with us during the last few months.

Decisions Not Yet Published in the Advance Sheets

The following are summaries of opinions from the Washington Supreme Court and the Court of Appeals relevant to issues in drug cases in which opinions have been filed, but not yet published in the Advance Sheets:

Police officers may make custodial arrests for non-minor traffic offenses – The Supreme Court (Utter. J) holds 9-0 that under RCW 46.64.015 and RCW 10.31.100(3), police officers may make custodial arrests for non-minor traffic offenses (such as reckless driving), overruling <u>State v. Stortroen</u>, 53 Wn. App. 654, 769 P.2d 321 (1989) insofar as it is inconsistent. <u>State v. Reding</u>, No. 58462-1 (slip op. September 10, 1992).

The essential elements rule applies to citations - The Supreme Court (Andersen, J.) holds 9-0 that a misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor citation used as the final charging document is constitutionally deficient if it merely states the name of the crime and its numerical code section, because it violates the essential elements rule, citing <u>State v. Leach</u>, 113 Wn.2d

679, 782 P.2d 552 (1989) and <u>Seattle v. Hein.</u> 115 Wn.2d 555, 799 P.2d 734 (1990). <u>Auburn v. Brooke</u>, No. 57867-2 (slip op. September 9, 1992).

A search of rented premises where the tenant is present is unreasonable where the police did not ask the tenant for his permission to search -- In <u>State v. Birdsong</u>, No. 27636-1-I (slip op. July 20, 1992, Division I (Thompson, J.) held that the exclusionary rule prohibited the admission of evidence seized from a rented home during a warrantless search and post-arrest statements made by the defendant. In that case, the landlord and tenant were both present at the time of the search, but the police did not ask the tenant for permission to search. The State did not establish an exception to the warrant requirement. Although the tenant had removed some of his belongings, the evidence was insufficient to find that the defendant had voluntarily abandoned the premises.

A search warrant affidavit was held to be insufficient to support a finding of probable cause -- In <u>State v. Bittner</u>, No. 26689-6-I (slip op. July 20, 1992), Division I (Coleman, J.) held the trial court erred in admitting evidence obtained during the execution of a search warrant. A single unobserved transaction by an unidentified friend of the informant, uncorroborated by any other evidence, without any effort to establish the friend's reliability is insufficient to support a finding of probable cause.

A search of an arrestee's fanny pack was reasonable as incident to the defendant's arrest even though the pack was in the officer's exclusive control and the defendant was handcuffed and in the patrol car -- In <u>State v. Smith</u>, No. 58374-9 (slip op. September 10, 1992, the Supreme Court (Johnson, J.) 9-0 reversed Division III of the Court of Appeals (Shields, J.) (61 Wn. App. 482 (1991). The arrestee's fanny pack which he wore just prior to the atrest was searched just after the arrest. The Supreme Court held the search of the fanny pack was reasonable as a search incident to arrest even though the arrestee was handcuffed and placed in the back of a patrol car prior to that search, and the fanny pack was under the exclusive control of the arresting officer. A delay of 17 minutes prior to searching the item was found not to be unreasonable.

Prior deportations and post-conviction threats of harm to others are not proper reasons justifying an exceptional sentence -- In <u>State v. Valdez</u>, No. 13523-0-II (slip op. July 22, 1992), Division II (Alexander, J.) held that the trial court erred when it considered the defendant's prior deportations and post-conviction threats of harm to others as reasons justifying imposition of an exceptional sentence above the range, citing <u>State v. Barnes</u>, 117 Wn.2d 701, 711, 818 P.2d 1088 (1991) (future dangerousness is not a basis for an exceptional sentence in nonsexual offense cases).

A current sentencing court has discretion on how concurrently served prior offenses are to be counted, even though the earlier sentencing court determined the crimes were not the same criminal conduct -- In <u>State v. Lara</u>, No.

11347-7-III, Division III (Sweeney, J.) (slip op. August 11, 1992) held that the current sentencing court has discretion to count prior offenses served concurrently as one offense under RCW 9.94A.360(6)(a), even though prior sentencing courts determined that the offenses were not the same criminal conduct (RCW 9.94A.400(1)(a)). The court remanded the case to the sentencing court because the record was not clear the court exercised its discretion.

An attempted possession conviction is supportable even though the substance is not a controlled substance --Division I (Forrest, J.) held in <u>State v. Lynn</u>, No. 26462-1-I (slip op. August 31, 1992) that a person can be convicted of attempted possession of a controlled substance under RCW 69.50.407 even though the substance actually delivered to him was not a controlled substance.

An exceptional sentence above the range is reversed – Division I reversed and remanded for a sentence within the standard range in <u>State v. Bolton</u>, No. 27539-9-I (Forrest, J.) (slip op. August 31, 1992). Pending charges or unproven allegations cannot be considered as aggravating factors supporting an exceptional sentence. Callous disregard and future dangerousness cannot support an exceptional sentence in a non-sex offense case.

Information obtained in violation of RCW 9.73.210 and .230 is inadmissible – In <u>State v. Salinas</u>, No. 27454-6-I (slip op. August 24, 1992), Division I (Webster, A.C.J) reversed a conviction of possession of cocaine with intent to deliver, citing RCW 9.73.050, because RCW 9.73.210 was violated (no written authorization from a police officer or commander above the rank of first line supervisor) and under <u>State v.</u> Fjermestad, 114 Wn.2d 828, 791 P.2d 897 (1990), any information obtained in violation of RCW 9.73.050 including visual observations as well as assertive gestures is inadmissible in a criminal trial. Nor is RCW 9.73.230 applicable.

Due diligence was used to enter findings in a juvenile case even though they were untimely filed, and automatic reversal is not justified -- Citing <u>State v. Pena</u>, 65 Wn. App. 711, 829 P.2d 256 (1992), Division I held that the untimely filing of findings in a juvenile case did not result in the automatic reversal in every case where the State fails to strictly comply with JuCR 7.11(d). <u>State v. Cowgill</u>, No. 30775-4-I (per curiam) (slip op. August 24, 1992).

A trooper can ask for identification, but he can't go into the wallet and get it himself - Cocaine was seized from the defendant's wallet, a passenger in the car, following the arrest of the passenger for a traffic infraction, an open container violation. The officer asked the defendant for identification so he could issue a citation. The passenger first said he had none, and then said he had a Costco card, which he produced. The trooper testified that the defendant was acting furtively as though he didn't want the trooper to see inside his wallet. Because he was not satisfied with the identification produced, and his suspicions were aroused by the defendant's conduct, the trooper asked him to place his wallet on the hood of the car. The trooper then looked inside the partially opened wallet, and saw a bindle which he seized. Division III found that the trooper's suspicions were pure speculation; the defendant was not given an opportunity to sign a promise to

appear. The defendant has a right of privacy in his wallet; he did not have to hold it open for the officer to see. The trooper's seizure of the bindle in the wallet was improper. Because the facts do not support a reasonable belief that the defendant would fail to appear and answer the citation, there were no grounds to support his custodial arrest. <u>State v.</u> <u>Barwick.</u> No. 10958-5-III (Thompson, A.C.J.) (slip op. July 30, 1992).

Striker is superseded by the 1980 amendments to CrR 3.3. -- In State v. Phillips, No. 14129-9-II (slip op. July 29, 1992), Division II (Morgan, J.) held the 1980 amendments to CrR 3.3 superseded the decision in State v. Striker, 87 Wn.2d 870, 557 P.2d 847 (1976), (when the first appearance does not occur "within a reasonable time after the filing of the information, the 90-day period for trial is triggered not on the date of the first appearance, but on the date of the filing of the information). Under CrR 3.3, if the defendant is not in custody or subject to conditions of release, time for arraignment commences on the date of the defendant's appearance which follows the filing of the charge. If the defendant is in custody, the time for arraignment commences on the date a charge is filed. The case was reversed and remanded to determine if there is a violation of the defendant's constitutional speedy trial right.

RCW 69.50.435 does not violate due process or equal protection -- In State v. Dobbins, No. 28001-5-I, Division I (Coleman, J.) (slip op. August 17, 1992) held that the statutory presumption in RCW 69.50.435(a) that a delivery within 1,000 feet of a school detrimentally affects the children attending that school does not violate due process; the affirmative defense of RCW 69.50.435(d) does not violate equal protection of the laws, and there are reasonable grounds to distinguish between dealers for profit in or near a vehicle who deliver in a public area adjacent to a school yard and recreational users who deliver drugs not-for-profit in a private home where children are not present. A vehicle is accorded a lesser expectation of privacy than a home.

The Uniform Building Code saves the day! - In <u>State v.</u> <u>Browning</u>, No. 27892-2-I (slip op. August 17, 1992), Division I (Baker, J.) reversed convictions of possession of a controlled substance with intent to deliver. In that case, a building inspector inadvertently discovered marijuana plants in a basement during a final housing inspection. The appellate court determined that the building inspector's entry was unlawful because the defendant did not consent to the entry (the building contractor let him in even though the owner was home) and the inspector did not present his credentials or request entry as required under the Uniform Building Code.

The simultaneous possession of two different controlled substances does not encompass the same criminal conduct for purposes of calculating the offender score -- In <u>State v.</u> <u>Vike</u>, No. 27651-4-I, Division I (Agid, J.) (slip op. July 27, 1992) held that the simultaneous possession of heroin and clonazepam are not the same criminal conduct for calculating the offender score.

Random sampling in testing drugs is sufficient if the substances and packages are consistent in appearance - In <u>State v. Caldera</u>, No. 26923-2-I, Division I (Baker, J.) (slip

op. July 20, 1992) approved random sampling to support the identity of the entire quantity as an illegal drug. During an undercover operation, the defendant delivered several plastic bags containing a total of about 9 ounces of white powdery substance to undercover officers. A forensic expert visually inspected the substance in each of the plastic bags, finding them consistent in appearance and packaging, and randomly selected one bag for scientific testing. It tested positive for cocaine. Based on this random sampling, the trial court found that all the bags contained cocaine. An exceptional sentence above the range was justified because of the size of the intended drug transaction (19 ounces) and the amount actually delivered (9 ounces).

A declaration against penal interest made after arrest is reliable – In a case involving an informant's declaration against penal interest, <u>State v. Dyer</u>, No. 11483-0-III (slip op. July 16, 1992), Division III (Sweeney, J.) held that because the informant provided the statement in order to avoid his incarceration on a parole violation, the veracity element of <u>Aguilar-Spinelli</u> (usually satisfied by evaluating the informant's "track record") was satisfied by the declaration against penal interest, even though little was known about the informant. Citing <u>State v. Estorga</u>, 60 Wn. App. 298, 304, 803 P.2d 813, <u>review denied</u>, 116 Wn.2d 1027 (1991), the defendant was motivated in this postarrest situation to provide accurate information about the house. The basis of knowledge prong was satisfied because of the informant's personal observations of the grow operation. The Court noted the potential risk of disfavor with the prosecutor is a motive to be truthful where the information is given in exchange for a promise of leniency.

The following are recent unpublished opinions. Although the cases cannot be cited as authority, they are helpful in seeing how the Courts of Appeal analyze issues.

NOTE: Unpublished opinions cannot be cited as authority.

In an unpublished opinion in State v. Stewart, No. 11439-2-III filed August 11, 1992, Division III of the Court of Appeals (Sweeney, J.) reversed a Whitman County conviction of possession of a controlled substance. Based on an informant's tip that the car contained ten pounds of cocaine and ten to twelve thousand in cash, troopers stopped a vehicle on the highway. The car was also speeding. The troopers arrested the driver for driving while license suspended. The car was towed, and the passenger went with the tow truck driver. Without advising him of his Miranda rights, a detective questioned the passenger about the driver and his connection to him. When he was advised that he was being detained to give a statement, the passenger reached into his pocket and produced two bags and a bindle containing cocaine. He was then given his Miranda warnings. He moved to suppress the cocaine, and the trial court denied the motion. The Court of Appeals reversed and dismissed, holding that the act of producing the cocaine was a testimonial act, and should have But, the cocaine he surrendered is been suppressed. admissible because he was not coerced into surrendering it, citing State v. Wethered, 110 Wn.2d 466, 755 P.2d 797 (1988). Without the evidence that the defendant produced the bag, there was insufficient evidence to support the conviction.

In an unpublished opinion, <u>State v. Alvarez</u>, No. 10637-3 III, Division III (Munson, J.) determined that testimony by the officer that the defendant was acting as a look-out rather than being an innocent bystander was not admissible under ER 701 (lay witness) or under ER 702 (expert witness). The officer's testimony that the defendant acted as a look-out was tantamount to an opinion he was an accomplice, an ultimate issue of fact for the jury. The officer offered no foundation for his opinion, only the result. Because the officer was testifying both as a fact witness and as an expert on narcotics operations, the probative value of his opinion as to ultimate facts may be outweighed by the potential for prejudice, citing <u>United States v. Campino</u>, 890 F.2d 588, 593 (2d Cir. 1989), <u>cert. denied</u>, 112 L.Ed.2d 143 (1990). The error, however, was not reversible error because it did not, within a reasonable possibility, materially affect the outcome of the trial.

In an unpublished opinion, <u>State v. Hall</u>, No. 10913-5-III (slip op. July 30, 1992), Division III (Thompson, J.) affirmed a conviction for possession ov methamphetamine. The defendant challenged the sufficiency of the search warrant affidavit, particularly whether the identified informant's unsolicited statement against penal interest, that he used marijuana while at the defendant's residence, provides sufficient indicia of his reliability to support issuance of the warrant. Citing <u>State v.</u> <u>O'Connor</u>, 39 Wn. App. 113, 120, 692 P.2d 208 (1984), review denied, 103 Wn.2d 1022 (1985), a Division One case, independent corroboration of the information is not required. The disclosure of the informant's identity and his unsolicited statement against penal interest raise a reasonable inference that he was truthful. The statement supported issuance of the search warrant.

Division III in <u>State v. Pitts</u>, No. 11707-3-III (Thompson, J.) (slip op. July 21, 1992), an unpublished case, held the defendant's arrest was supported by probable cause. The informant's statement that the defendant had delivered cocaine to him on two occasions during controlled buys, and the officer's corroborations, particularly that she left the residence and returned with the cocaine, on each occasion were sufficient to permit a person of reasonable caution to believe the defendant had committed a felony. The court distinguished <u>State v. Steenerson</u>, 38 Wn. App. 722, 726-27, 688 P.2d 544 (1984).

Relevant Cases Set For Argument During The September Term Of The Washington Supreme Court

<u>State v. Houf</u>, No. 59156-3, will be argued on September 29, 1992. <u>Houf</u> raises the issue of whether an exceptional sentence above the range may be imposed based on the sentencing court's finding that the defendant committed perjury while testifying at trial. A similar issue was raised and answered by Division III in <u>State v. Martinez</u>, 66 Wn. App. 53 (June 9, 1992).

On October 15, 1992, <u>Stato v. Hutsell.</u> No. 58579-2, oral arguments will be presented on the issue of whether a defendant's drug addiction can support an exceptional sentence below the standard range when the sentencing court finds that the addiction was involuntary and impaired the defendant's

ability to appreciate the wrongfulness of his criminal conduct.

The issue, whether the trial court erred in suppressing evidence gained by police when the police, executing a search warrant at the defendant's home, answered a telephone and arranged to sell marijuana to the caller, will be argued on October 22, 1992 in <u>State v. Perry</u>, No. 59240-3.

Advance Sheets (July and August, 1992)

Cases that were reported in Vol. 1, No. 5 of DefenseNET that are now published will not be reported on in this edition of the newsletter.

Credit for good behavior against time served must be uniformly applied -- In In re Schaupp. 66 Wn. App. 45 (June 9, 1992), the court held that RCW 9.94A.150(I) and RCW 9.92.151 provide for early release credit for good behavior in an amount up to one-third of the defendant's total sentence when the defendant was confined in a county jail as to a particular crime. A defendant confined in one county cannot be treated differently than a defendant confined in another county. See In re Mota, 114 Wn.2d 465, 788 P.2d 538 (1990).

A weapons search is limited – The trial court erred in denying a suppression motion. Under <u>Terry</u>, a weapons search may be conducted only if the police officer reasonably believes the defendant to be armed and presently dangerous. <u>State v. Collins</u>, 66 Wn. App. 157 (June 22, 1992).

"Future dangerousness" applies only to sexual offenses -- The

"future dangerousness" aggravating sentencing factor applies only to sexual offenses and applies to sexual offenses only if the defendant has a history or similar criminal acts and the defendant is not likely to be amenable to treatment. To apply the "future dangerousness" aggravating factor to a defendant convicted of a sexual offense, the sentencing court must have before it the opinion of a mental health professional that the defendant will not likely be amenable to treatment. <u>State v.</u> <u>Strauss</u>, 119 Wn.2d 401 (July 9, 1992).

"Abuse of trust" can be an aggravating factor in

non-economic crimes -- The aggravating sentencing factor of an abuse of a position of trust can apply to defendants who commit non-economic crimes as well as to defendants who commit economic crimes because the list of aggravating factors in RCW 9.94A.390 is merely illustrative and not exclusive. An "abuse of trust" can occur through recklessness as well as through purposeful design. <u>State v. Chadderton</u>, 119 Wn.2d 390 (July 9, 1992)

Katherine S. Knox

Notes to Members

A change in staff is occurring at WDA. Pat Novotny has left the program as of August 31st and we hope to have her replacement on staff by October. Kathy Knox will be handling all consultations in the interim. Kathy is now based part-time at the Spokane County Public Defender office (509-456-4246) as well as in Yakima. She will move to Spokane full-time in January of 1993 when our third staff attorney begins in Yakima.

Washington Defender Association 810 Third Avenue, Suite 800 Seattle, WA 98104

FORENSICS CLE October 2, 1992 Federal Building, North Auditorium 915 Second Avenue 7 CLE Credits

APPENDIX F:

•

SELECT SECTION OF DRUG DEFENSE MANUAL

DEFENSE --OFA--DRUGCASE

JANUARY 1993

The Washington Defender Association

810 Third Avenue, Suite 800 Seattle, WA 98104 (206) 623-4321

Acknowledgement

This manual is the result of months of work by several people. Christie Hedman, executive director of WDA, was the shepherd who guided the flock of writers and editors and technical people through the numerous drafts and revisions to the final product. She was assisted by Meredith Hunnibell and Susan Hesselgrave.

The main writers and researchers of the manual were WDA staff attorneys Kathy Knox and Pat Novotny. Staff attorney Rick Cowan assisted in the final stages. Suzanne Elliott, director of the Washington Appellate Defender Association, provided substantial editing advice. Also on the manual committee were Dave Compton, executive director of Society of Counsel, and Bob Boruchowitz, director of the Seattle-King County Defender Association. Michael Spearman, felony supervisor at the Defender Association, provided technical assistance. Style editing was done by Sheila Molnar and the layout and production of the manual was done by David Oxley.

This is WDA's first practice guidebook of this scope. We hope that it will be useful for criminal law practitioners representing clients in drug cases. Obviously, it cannot address every wrinkle in every case, and attorneys should apply their own experience and insight. We welcome suggestions for possible later editions.

Robert C. Boruchowitz President, WDA

This project was supported by Contract #91-DB-CX-0053, awarded by the Bureau of Justice programs, U.S. Department of Justice. The assistant Attorney General, Office of Justice Programs, coordinates the activities of the following program offices and bureaus: Bureau of Justice Assistance, Bureau of Justice Statistics, National Institute of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, and the Office for Victims of Crime. Points of view or opinions contained within this document do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice.

How to Use This Manual

This manual was produced for use by criminal defense trial attorneys, especially appointed counsel. It is designed to be helpful both to attorneys with experience handling drug cases and to attorneys who are new to drug defense work.

Structure of the Manual

The subjects that may arise during the course of a felony drug trial appear in the manual at the place where they would appear chronologically in the trial. The manual is divided into three parts, with each part fulfilling a different purpose.

Part One provides a chronological overview of the typical drug case in a brief narrative form, broken down into topics and subtopics. Look here if you have never done a drug trial (or want to refresh your memory).

Part Two contains strategies and tactics. This section describes for the defense attorney WHAT TO DO (or to think of doing) OR NOT TO DO at every stage of the trial process. Included are practice tips, as well as strategy and ethical considerations. You will find in Part Three the full citations to the cases mentioned here.

Part Three contains legal analysis for each identified topic and subtopic. Included are the controlling rules, statutes, and cases to aid your evaluation of an issue. Note: this section is not copyrighted and you may integrate text from here into your brief or memo. However, counsel is responsible for the accuracy of the law, and you should check the most recent cases. Cases included in the manual were current through 118 Wn.2d and 64 Wn.App.

Finding A Subject

Each individual subject has been assigned a chronological position and an unique topic (or subtopic) number. A subject will appear in each of the three parts at the same topic number, although in each part (as outlined above) it will be discussed differently.

For example:

3.3 refers to plea negotiation issues in each of the three manual parts:

- Part One gives a brief overview of plea negotiations.
- Part Two provides nuts and bolts directions for handling plea negotiations.
- Part Three analyzes the law as it relates to plea negotiations.

How to Use This Manual

Conventions

To guide you in the use of this manual, we have used the following conventions:

3.5.1 Numbers designate individual topics and subtopics.

• Bullets indicate lists and, in Part Two, "Question" and "Actions to Take" items.

Note: Calls attention to important information.

Italic Used for all cross-references.

PART ONE – A BRIEF OVERVIEW

Section 1 – Pre-Arraignment

1.1	DETENTION	3
1.2	PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION HEARING OR PRELIMINARY APPEARANCE	3
1.3	RIGHT TO COUNSEL	3
1.4	INFORMATION	3
1.5	INTERPRETER	4
1.6	JURISDICTION AND VENUE	4
1.7	FORMER/DOUBLE JEOPARDY	4
1.8	EX POST FACTO LAWS	4
1.9	STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS	4

Section 2 – Arraignment

2.1	ARRAIGNMENT HEARING	5
2.2	PRETRIAL RELEASE AND BAIL SETTING	5
2.3	SETTING A TRIAL DATE	5

Section 3 – Pretrial Proceedings

3.1	DISCOVERY	. 6
3.2	AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE	. 6
3.3	PLEA NEGOTIATIONS	. 6
3.4	OMNIBUS HEARING	. 6
3.5	PRETRIAL MOTIONS	. 7
3.6	STATE'S MOTION TO AMEND THE INFORMATION	. 7
3.7	CHANGE OF PLEA	. 7
3.8	MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA	. 8
3.9	PRETRIAL HEARING	. 8

Section 4 – Trial

4.1	RIGHT TO A FAIR AND IMPARTIAL TRIER OF FACT	9
4.2	JURY TRIAL VERSUS BENCH TRIAL	9
4.3	STIPULATED TRIAL	9
4.4	EVIDENTIARY CONSIDERATIONS (MOTIONS IN LIMINE)	9
4.5	JURY SELECTION AND COMPOSITION	10

4.6	OPENING STATEMENTS	10
4.7	STATE'S CASE	10
4.8	PHYSICAL EVIDENCE	10
4.9	MOTION TO DISMISS AT CONCLUSION OF STATE'S CASE-IN-CHIEF	10
4.10	DEFENSE CASE AND DEFENSES	11
4.11	JURY INSTRUCTIONS	11
4.12	MOTION TO REOPEN	11
4.13	CLOSING ARGUMENTS	11
4.14	MOTION FOR A MISTRIAL	12
4.15	JUROR INQUIRIES	12
4.16	VERDICT	12

Section 5 – Post-Trial Proceedings

5.1	POST-VERDICT MOTIONS	13
5.2	PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION AND REPORT	13
5.3	RIGHT TO APPEAL/DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	13

Section 6 – Sentencing

6.1	THE DETERMINATE SENTENCING SYSTEM	14
6.2	SENTENCE ENHANCEMENTS	14
6.3	EXCEPTIONAL SENTENCES	14
6.4	SENTENCING HEARING	14
6.5	PENALTIES	14

Section 7 – Appeal

7.1	NOTICE OF APPEAL/NOTICE OF DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	15
7.2	ORDER OF INDIGENCY	15
7.3	APPEAL BOND AND STAY OF EXECUTION OF JUDGMENT	15

Section 8 – Other Consequences of a Felony Drug Conviction

8.1	RIGHT TO VOTE	16
8.2	RIGHT TO CARRY A FIREARM	16
8.3		16
8.4	FORFEITURE OF PROPERTY	16
8.5	LATER FEDERAL CONSEQUENCES	16

. •••

PART TWO - STRATEGIES AND TACTICS

Section 1 – Pre-Arraignment

1.1	DETENTION	18
1.2	PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION HEARING OR PRELIMINARY APPEARANCE	19
1.3	RIGHT TO COUNSEL	19
	1.3.1 Commencement of the Right to Counsel	20
	1.3.2 Determination of Indigency	20
	1.3.3 Confidentiality	21
	1.3.4 Conflict of Interest	21
	1.3.5 Withdrawal/Substitution of Counsel	22
	1.3.6 Right to Proceed Pro Se (Waiver of Right to Counsel)	22
	1.3.7 Standby Counsel	22
1.4		22
	1.4.1 Written Copy	23
	1.4.2 Where Filed	23
	1.4.3 Essential Elements of the Information	23
	1.4.4 Motion to Dismiss for Insufficiency of the Information	24
	1.4.5 Motion for Bill of Particulars	25
	1.4.6 Amendment of the Information	25
	1.4.7 Motion to Dismiss Under General/Specific Statute Principle	26
1.5	INTERPRETER	26
1.6	JURISDICTION AND VENUE	27
1.7	FORMER/DOUBLE JEOPARDY	27
1.8	EX POST FACTO LAWS	28
1.9	STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS	28

Section 2 – Arraignment

2.1	ARRAIGNMENT HEARING	. 29
	2.1.1 Time	. 29
	2.1.2 Pleas	
2.2	PRETRIAL RELEASE AND BAIL SETTING	. 30
2.3	SETTING A TRIAL DATE	. 31

Section 3 – Pretrial Proceedings

3.1	DISCOVERY					
	3.1.1	Informants	33			
	3.1.2	In Camera Inspections	34			
	3.1.3	Remedy for Violation of Discovery Rule	34			

PART TWO - STRATEGIES AND TACTICS

ĥ

-

3.2	PRET	RIAL INVE	STIGATION .		35
	3.2.1	Interview	Your Client		35
	3.2.2	Investiga	te Specific Defe	enses	36
	3.2.3	Investiga	te Police Misco	nduct	39
	3.2.4	Investiga	te Confidential	Informant	40
	3.2,5			es	40
	3.2.6	Identifica	tion Procedures	\$	41
	3.2.7	Motion fo	or Authorization	to Expend Public Funds for Expert or	
		Other I	Defense Servic	es	42
	3.2.8	Compuls	ory Process		43
	3.2.9	Other Ty	pes of Evidence	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	43
3.3	PLEA	NEGOTIA	TIONS		44
3.4	OMNI	BUS HEAF	RING		45
3.5	PRETI	RIAL MOT	IONS		45
1	3.5.1	Speedy 7	Frial		45
	3.5.2	Motion to	Suppress Evic	lence	47
		3.5.2.1	Seizures		48
			3.5.2.1(A)	Arrest (Probable Cause)	48
				Arrest With a Warrant	49
				Arrest Without a Warrant (Warrantless Arrest)	49
			3.5.2.1(B)	Investigatory Stops/Casual Street Encounters	50
		3.5.2.2	Search		51
			3.5.2.2(A)	Search With a Warrant	51
	•		3.5.2.2(A)(1)	Affidavit	52
	•		3.5.2.2(A)(2)	Execution of Search Warrant	54
			3.5.2.2(A)(3)	Telephonic Warrant	55
			3.5.2.2(B)	Warrantless Searches	55
			3.5.2.2(B)(1)	Exigent Circumstances	55
			3.5.2.2(B)(2)	Consent to Search	56
			3.5.2.2(B)(3)	Search Incident to Arrest	57
			3.5.2.2(B)(4)	Search in Plain Viow/Open Fields	57
			3.5.2.2(B)(5)	"Pat-down" Search or Frisk for Weapons	58
			3.5.2.2(B)(6)	Private Search	58
			3.5.2.2(B)(7)	Booking Search	59
			3.5.2.2(B)(8)	Impounded Vehicle	59
			3.5.2.2(B)(9)	Areas or Objects Having Greater Protection Under the State	
				Constitution than Under the Fourth Amendment	60
			3.5.2.2(C)	Exotica (When a Search Is Not a Search)	60
	. 4	3.5.2.3	Exceeding the	Scope of the Search	60
		3.5.2.4	Exclusionary I	Rule	60
		3.5.2.5	Remedy (Excl	usionary Rule)	60
	3.5.3	Motion to		ements	61
		3.5.3.1	•••	*****	61
68					

6

5

			3.5.3.1(A)	Custody	62
			3.5.3.1(B)	Interrogation	62
			3.5.3.1(C)	Waiver/Consent	63
			3.5.3.1(D)	Spontaneous Statements	63
		3.5.3.2	Violations of T	aped Statement Statute	64
		3.5.3.3	Violations of the	he Wiretap Statutes	64
		3.5.3.4	Corpus Delicti		66
	3.5.4	Motion to	Sever Offense	s or Defendants	66
		3.5.4.1	Severance of	Defendants	66
		3.5.4.2	Severance of	Offenses	66
	3.5.5	Motion to	Suppress Infor	mation	67
	3.5.6	Motion to	Dismiss (State	v. Knapstad)	67
	3.5.7	Motion to	Dismiss in the	Furtherance of Justice	68
	3.5.8	Motion to	Dismiss for Fa	ilure to Preserve Evidence	68
	3.5.9	Motion to	Dismiss Based	I on Violations of The Defendant's Constitutional Rights	68
	3.5.10	Motion to	Dismiss Sente	ncing Enhancement	69
	3.5.11	Motion for	r Change of Ve	nue	69
	3.5.12	Motion to	Hold a Materia	l Witness	70
3.6	STATE	'S MOTIOI	N TO AMEND		71
	3.6.1	Timing an	d Substance of	f Amendment	71
	3.6.2	Arraignme	ent on the Ame	nded Information (Right to Receive a Copy)	71
3.7	CHAN	GE OF PL	EA		71
3.8					72
3.9	PRETF	RIAL HEAF	RING		73

Section 4 – Trial

4.1	RIGHT TO A FAIR AND IMPARTIAL TRIER OF FACT	74
	4.1.1 Affidavit of Prejudice	74
	4.1.2 Juror Misconduct	74
	4.1.3 Due Process	75
4.2	JURY TRIAL VERSUS BENCH TRIAL	76
4.3	STIPULATED TRIAL	76
4,4	EVIDENTIARY CONSIDERATIONS (MOTIONS IN LIMINE)	77
	4.4.1 Motion to Limit Testimony of Police Officers	77
	4.4.2 Motion to Exclude Prior Bad Acts/Convictions	77
	4.4.3 Motion to Exclude Aliases	77
	4.4.4 Motion to Exclude Character Evidence	78
	4.4.5 Motion to Exclude Extraneous Evidence	78

4.5	JURY	SELECTI	ON AND COMPOSITION	78
	4.5.1	Voir Dire	• Examination	78
	4.5.2	Challeng	jes	79
		4.5.2.1	Challenges to the Entire Venire	79
		4.5.2.2	Challenges to Individual Jurors	79
		4.5.2.3	Batson Challenges (Discriminatory)	79
<i>4</i> .6	OPEN	ING STAT	EMENTS	80
	4.6.1	Motion to	Dismiss After Opening Statement	80
	4.6.2	Defenda	nt Reserving	81
4.7	STATE	S CASE		81
	4.7.1	State's E	Burden of Proof	81
	4.7.2	Elements	S	81
		4.7.2.1	Possession of a Controlled Substance	81
		4.7.2.2	Knowledge	83
		4.7.2.3	Intent to Deliver or Manufacture	83
		4.7.2.4	Unlawful Delivery of a Controlled Substance	84
		4.7.2.5	Manufacturing a Controlled Substance or Possession of a Controlled	
			Substance with Intent to Manufacture	85
		4.7.2.6	Enhancements for Certain Drug Offenses	86
			Sale for Profit	87
			"Burn" Statute – Imitation Controlled Substance	
		•	Distribution of Controlled Substances to Persons Under Age Eighteen	88
			Controlled Substances Homicide	88
			Uttering a Forged Prescription or Attempting to Obtain Controlled	
			Substances by Fraud, Deceit, Misrepresentation, or False Name	88
			Possession of Drug Paraphernalia with Intent to Use	88
	4.7.3	Accompli	ice Liability	89
	4.7.4	-	ory Offenses	89
		4.7.4.1	Conspiracy	89
			• Types	90
			Participants' Liability	90
		· •		91
			Where Only Two Conspirators Involved	91
			Conspirators' Statements	91
			Inconsistent Verdicts	91
		4.7.4.2	Attempt	92
		4.7.4.3	Criminal Solicitation	92
	4.7.5		tion of State's Witnesses	92
		4.7.5.1		92
		4.7.5.2	Impeachment Issues	93
	4.7.6		tion of Codefendants	
	-T11-1V			U C

	4.8	PHYSICAL EVIDENCE	93
		4.8.1 Relevance and Admissibility	93
		4.8.2 Chain of Custody (Authentication and Identification)	93
	4.9	MOTION TO DISMISS AT CONCLUSION OF STATE'S CASE-IN-CHIEF	94
	4.10	DEFENSE CASE AND DEFENSES	95
		4.10.1 Right to Remain Silent/Decision to Testify	95
		4.10.2 Specific Defenses	96
		4.10.2.1 General Denial/Credibility of the Witnesses	96
		4.10.2.2 Entrapment	96
		4.10.2.3 Unwitting Possession	97
		4.10.2.4 Duress	99
		4.10.2.5 Alibi	99
		4.10.2.6 Misidentification	100
		4.10.2.6(A) Photo Montage or Lineup	100
		4.10.2.6(B) Showup	101
		4.10.2.6(C) An Officer's Identification of the Defendant	101
		4.10.2.7 Medical Necessity	101
		4.10.2.8 Drug-induced Psychosis	102
	4.11	JURY INSTRUCTIONS	102
		4.11.1 Defendant's Proposed Instructions	102
		4.11.2 Lesser Included Offenses	103
		4.11.3 'To Convict" Instructions/Drug Offenses	103
		4.11.4 Limiting or Cautionary Instructions	103
÷		4.11.5 Curative Instructions	103
	•	4.11.6 Erroneous Instructions	103
		4.11.7 Unanimous Jury or "Petrich" Instructions	103
		4.11.8 Missing Witness Instruction	104
1		4.11.9 Objections and Exceptions	104
	4.12	MOTION TO REOPEN	104
	4.13	CLOSING ARGUMENTS	104
		4.13.1 Prosecutorial Misconduct	105
		4.13.2 Proper Rebuttal	105
	4.14	MOTION FOR MISTRIAL	105
		4.14.1 Prosecutorial Misconduct	105
	•	4.14.2 Juror Misconduct	105
		4.14.3 Deadlocked or "Hung" Jury	105
			106
			106
		4.15.2 During Deliberations	106
	4.16	VERDICT	106
		4.16.1 Inconsistent Verdicts	107
		4.16.2 Special Findings	107
		4.16.3 Polling the Jury	107

ļ,

Section 5 – Post-Trial Proceedings

5.1	POST	VERDICT MOTIONS	108
	5.1.1	Motion for Arrest of Judgment	108
	5.1.2	Motion for a New Trial	108
	5.1.3	Motion For Relief from Judgment	109
	5.1.4	Motion to Dismiss in Furtherance of Justice	110
5.2	PRE-S	ENTENCE INVESTIGATION AND REPORT	110
5.3	RIGHT	TO APPEAL/DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	111

Section 6 – Sentencing

6.1	THE I	DETERMINATE SENTENCING SYSTEM	112
	6.1.1	Calculating the Standard Range	113
		6.1.1.1 Offense Date	113
		6.1.1.2 Seriousness Level of the Offense of Conviction	113
		6.1.1.3 Offender Score	113
		6.1.1.3(A) Criminal History	114
		6.1.1.3(B) First-Time Offender	114
		6.1.1.3(C) Prior Convictions	114
		6.1.1.3(D) Other Current Offenses	115
		6.1.1.3(E) Relationship Between Prior and Current Offenses	
		(Washout Rules)	115
		6.1.1.3(F) Committed While on Community Placement	116
		6.1.1.4 Special Cases	116
6.2	SENT	ENCE ENHANCEMENTS	116
	6.2.1	Deadly Weapon	116
	6.2.2	School Zone, Etc	116
	6.2.3	Committed in County Jail or State Correctional Facility	116
	6.2.4	Distribution to Persons Under Age Eighteen	117
6.3	EXCE	PTIONAL SENTENCES	117
	6,3.1	Aggravating Circumstances	117
		6.3.1.1 Statutory	117
		6.3.1.2 Non-Statutory	117
	6.3.2	Mitigating Circumstances	117
		6.3.2.1 Statutory	118
1.0		6.3.2.2 Non-Statutory	118
	6.3.3	Review of an Exceptional Sentence	118
	6.3.4	Remand or Affirmance	118
	6.3.5	Juvenile Manifest Injustice Disposition	118
6.4	SENTI	ENCING HEARING	118
	6.4.1	Witnesses	119
	6.4.2	Presentence Investigation and Report	119

	6.4.3	Right of A	Allocution	119
	6.4.4	Judgmen	t and Sentence	119
6.5	PENA	LTIES		119
	6.5.1	Confinem	nent	120
	6.5.2	Postrelea	ase Supervision	120
		6.5.2.1	Sentence Conditions	120
		6.5.2.2	Sanctions for Violations of Sentence Conditions	120
	6.5.3	Financial	Obligations	120

Section 7 – Appeal

7.1	NOTICE OF APPEAL/NOTICE OF DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	121
7.2	ORDER OF INDIGENCY	121
7.3	APPEAL BOND AND STAY OF EXECUTION OF JUDGMENT	121

Section 8 – Other Consequences of a Felony Drug Conviction

8.1	RIGHT TO VOTE	122
8.2	RIGHT TO CARRY A FIREARM	122
8.3		122
8.4	FORFEITURE OF PROPERTY	122
8.5	LATER FEDERAL CONSEQUENCES	123

PART THREE – THE APPLICABLE LAW

Section 1 – Pre-Arraignment

1.1	DETENTION	. 126
1.2	PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION HEARING OR PRELIMINARY APPEARANCE	. 126
	Motion to Dismiss for Insufficiency of Probable Cause Affidavit	. 127
1.3	RIGHT TO COUNSEL	. 127
	Fifth Amendment Right to Counsel and Custodial Interrogation	. 128
	1.3.1 Commencement of the Right to Counsel	. 129
	1.3.2 Determination of Indigency	. 130
	1.3.3 Confidentiality	131
	1.3.4 Conflict of Interest	. 131
	Conflict With Two Clients	132
	Conflict With Client	132
	Conflict With Counsel's Own Interest	. 133
	Counsel Accused of Criminal Conduct	133
	Where Counsel Might Be Witness	. 133
	1.3.5 Withdrawal/Substitution of Counsel	
•	Motion to Withdraw Based on Conflict with Client	134
	Motion for Substitute Counsel	. 134
	1.3.6 Right to Proceed Pro Se (Waiver of Right to Counsel)	136
	1.3.7 Standby Counsel	138
1.4	INFORMATION	141
	1.4.1 Written Copy	142
	1.4.2 Where Filed	142
	1.4.3 Essential Elements of the Information	143
•	Possession with Intent to Manufacture or Deliver	143
	Delivery or Manufacture	143
	Possession	144
	1.4.4 Motion to Dismiss for Insufficiency of the Information	144
	1.4.5 Motion for Bill of Particulars	145
	1.4.6 Amendment of the Information	146
	1.4.7 Motion to Dismiss Under General/Specific Statute Principle	147
1.5	INTERPRETER	147
1.6	JURISDICTION AND VENUE	148
	• Jurisdiction	148
	• Venue	150
1.7	FORMER/DOUBLE JEOPARDY	151
1.8	EX POST FACTO LAWS	154
1.9	STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS	154

Section 2 – Arraignment

2.1	ARRAIGNMENT HEARINGS									. 157			
	2.1.1	Time						• • • • •	• • • • •	 		• • • • •	. 157
	2.1.2	Pleas .						• • • • •		 : • • • • •		• • • • •	. 158
		2.1.2.1	Not Guilty	• • • • •						 • • • • •		••••	. 158
		2.1.2.2	Not Guilty I	By Rea	ison o	Insan	ity	•••••		 • • • • •	• • • •	• • • • •	. 159
		2.1.2.3	Guilty	• • • •			• • • •	• • • • •		 • • • • •		• • • • •	. 159
2.2	PRET	RIAL RELI	EASE AND B	AIL SE	ETTIN	Э°	• • • •	• • • • •		 	• • • •	• • • • •	. 159
2.3	SETTI	NG A TRI	AL DATE					* • • • •					. 160

Section 3 – Pretrial Proceedings

3.1	DISCOVERY	162
	State's Duty	163
	• Witnesses	164
	Other Exculpatory Information	164
	Interview Notes	165
	Defendant's Duty	165
	Limitations on Discovery	166
	Materiality	166
	• Privilege	167
	3.1.1 Informants	170
	3.1.2 In Camera Inspections	171
14. j. j. 1	3.1.3 Remedy for Violation of Discovery Rule	172
•	Unendorsed Witnesses	173
3.2	PRETRIAL INVESTIGATION	173
	3.2.1 Interview Your Client	173
	3.2.2 Investigate Specific Defenses	173
	3.2.3 Investigate Police Misconduct	174
	3.2.4 Investigate Confidential Informant	174
	3.2.5 Interview Police Witnesses	174
	3.2.6 Identification Procedures	174
	3.2.7 Motion for Authorization to Expend Public Funds for	
	Expert or Other Defense Services	174
	3.2.8 Compulsory Process	176
		176
3.3	PLEA NEGOTIATIONS	177
	• Plea Bargaining	177
	Plea Agreements	177
	Remedies/Withdrawal of Plea of Guilty	179
21	OMNIBUS HEADING	101

3.5	PRET	RIAL MOT	10NS		182
	3.5.1				182
		3.5.1.1	Speedy Trial:	Court Rules	182
			 Calculation 	of Trial Date	183
			When Trial	Begins	184
			 Responsibilition 	lity for Engement	185
			Preserving	the Right and Waiver	185
			Reasons J	ustifying and Not Justifying Continuance or Extension	
			Beyond S	Speedy Trial Period	186
			· -	mes and Different Courts	188
			Remedy		188
		3.5.1.2		Constitutional Right	189
	3.5.2		•	Jence	189
	0.0.2				190
				ons	190
					191
		3.5.2.1	•		192
		0.0.2.1	3.5.2.1(A)	Arrest (Probable Cause)	193
			0.0.2.1(~)	Arrest with Warrant	194
				Arrest Without a Warrant (Warrantless Arrest)	194
			2501(0)	•	194
			3.5.2.1(B)	Investigatory Stops/Casual Street Encounters	196
			•	Holding of Identification as Stop	
	•	•		Failure to Stop/Obstructing	197
	94 			• Furtive Gestures	198
				• Passenger	198
		3.5.2.2		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	200
			3.5.2.2(A)	Search with a Warrant	203
			3.5.2.2(A)(1)	Affidavit	204
				Material Misrepresentations or Omissions	205
				Obtaining Power Consumption Records	206
				Innocuous Power Consumption	207
				Sufficiency of Affidavit in Support of a Warrant	207
			3.5.2.2(A)(2)	Execution of Search Warrant	207
				Knock and Announce	208
				Scope of Search	209
				Plain View	210
1 - ¹			3.5.2.2(A)(3)	Telephonic Warrant	210
			3.5.2.2(B)	Warrantless Searches	211
			3.5.2.2(B)(1)	Exigent Circumstances	211
				• Emergency Exception	212
				• Hot Pursuit	213
				Fleeing Suspect	213

ø

			Mobility of Vehicle	214
			• Destruction of Evidence	214
		3.5.2.2(B)(2)	Consent to Search	214
			• Entry by Ruse	216
			Consent to Search of Vehicle – Container Not Included	217
		3.5.2.2(B)(3)	Search Incident to Arrest	218
•		3,5.2.2(B)(4)	Search in "Plain View"/Open Fields	219
			• Open View	220
		3.5.2.2(B)(5)	"Pat-down" Search or Frisk for Weapons	220
		3.5.2.2(B)(6)	Private Search	222
		3.5.2.2(B)(7)	Booking Search	223
		3.5.2.2(B)(8)	Impounded Vehicle	223
		3.5.2.2(B)(9)	Areas or Objects Having Greater Protection Under the State	
			Constitution Than Under the Fourth Amendment	223
•		3.5.2.2(C)	Exotica (When a Search is Not a Search)	223
			Canine Sniff Search	223
	•		Inventory Searches	225
			Border Searches	227
	3.5.2.3	Exceeding the	Scope of the Search	228
		Terry Stops	***************************************	228
	3.5.2.4	Exclusionary F	Rule	231
	3.5.2.5	Remedy (Excl	usionary Rule)	234
		Statements		234
		Consent to	Search	235
1.1		Outstanding	Warrant	236
		 Identification 	1	236
3.5.3	Motion to	Suppress State	ements	237
	3.5.3.1	Voluntariness		237
		3.5.3.1(A)	Custody	239
		3.5.3.1(B)	Interrogation	240
		3.5.3.1(C)	Waiver/Consent	242
		3.5.3.1(D)	Spontaneous Statements	245
	3.5.3.2	Violations of T	aped Statement Statute	247
	3.5.3.3	Violations of W	Viretap Statutes	248
	3.5.3.4	Corpus Delicti		248
3.5.4	Motion to	Sever Offenses	s or Defendants	249
	3.5.4.1	Severance of I	Defendants	249
		 Mandatory \$ 	Severance Rule	249
		· · · · ·	y Severance Rule	250
	3.5.4.2		, Offenses	251

PART THREE - THE APPLICABLE LAW

	3.5.5 Motion to Suppress Identification	253
	Was the Procedure Suggestive?	254
	Totality of Circumstances Test for Likelihood of Misidentification	255
	• Remedy	256
	3.5.6 Motion to Dismiss (State v. Knapstad)	256
	3.5.7 Motion to Dismiss in Furtherance of Justice	257
	3.5.8 Motion to Dismiss for Failure to Preserve Evidence	258
	3.5.9 Motion to Dismiss Based on Violations of Defendant's Constitutional Rights	260
	Preaccusatorial Delay	260
	 Violation of Equal Protection Based on Unfettered Prosecutorial 	
	Discretion in Charging	261
	Motion to Dismiss for Violation of General-Specific Rule of Statutory Construction	262
	Violation of Single Subject Requirement	265
	Double Jeopardy	266
	Ex Post Facto Laws	266
	3.5.10 Motion to Dismiss Sentencing Enhancement	266
	Equal Protection 1	267
	Equal Protection 2	269
	Due Process: Irrebuttable Presumption	271
	3.5.1 Motion for Change of Venue	273
	Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Proof of Venue	275
	3.5.12 Motion to Hold a Material Witness	275
	The Compulsory Process Clause	277
3.6	STATE'S MOTION TO AMEND THE INFORMATION	277
	3.6.1 Timing and Substance of Amendment	277
	3.6.2 Arraignment on the Amended Information (Right to Receive a Copy)	279
3.7	CHANGE OF PLEA	280
	• Alford Plea	280
3.8	MOTION TO WITHDRAW GUILTY PLEA	281
	Ineffective Counsel	281
	• Voluntariness	283
	Prosecutor Breach of Plea Agreement	284
3.9	PRETRIAL HEARING	285

Section 4 – Trial

4,1	RIGHT	TO FAIR AND IMPARTIAL TRIER OF FACT	286
	4.1.1	Affidavit of Prejudice	287
	4.1.2	Juror Misconduct	289
		Failure to Disclose Material Information	289
		Contact With Third Parties	290
		Extraneous Matter	291
		Closer Examination	292

	4.1.3	Due Process	292
		• Presence	292
4.2	JURY	TRIAL VERSUS BENCH TRIAL	293
	• Waiv	/er	293
	•	acity or Competency to Waive Right	294
4.3	STIPU	LATED TRIAL	296
4.4	EVIDE	NTIARY CONSIDERATIONS (MOTIONS IN LIMINE)	297
	4.4.1	Motion to Limit Testimony of Police Officers	298
		Based on Loss of Police Notes	298
	4.4.2	Motion to Exclude Prior Bad Acts/Convictions	299
		Res Gestae Exception	301
	4.4.3	Motion to Exclude Aliases	301
	4.4.4	Motion to Exclude Character Evidence	301
		Prior Bad Acts and Crimes	302
		Gang Membership	302
		• Habit	303
4.5	JURY		303
	4.5.1	Voir Dire Examination	305
	4.5.2	Challenges	305
		4.5.2.1 Challenges to the Entire Venire	305
		4.5.2.2 Challenges to Individual Jurors	306
		Challenges for Cause	307
		Preservation of Error and Remedy	309
		Peremptory Challenges	310
	•	4.5.2.3 Batson Challenges (Discriminatory)	310
4.6	OPENI	NG STATEMENTS	314
	4.6.1	Motion to Dismiss After Opening Statement	316
	4.6.2	Defendant Reserving	316
4.7	STATE	'S CASE	316
	4.7.1	State's Burden of Proof	316
	4.7.2	Elements	317
		4.7.2.1 Possession of a Controlled Substance	317
		Actual or Constructive (Dominion and Control)	317
		Dominion and Control	319
		• Residue	320
		4.7.2.2 Knowledge	321
		4.7.2.3 Intent to Deliver or Manufacture	321
		Use of 404(b) Evidence to Prove Intent	322
		4.7.2.4 Unlawful Delivery of a Controlled Substance	324
		4.7.2.5 Manufacturing a Controlled Substance or Possession of a Controlled	
		Substance with Intent to Manufacture	326

		4.7.2.6	Enhancements for Certain Drug Offenses	326
			Deadly Weapon Enhancement	326
			School Zone, etc., Enhancement	
			County Jail Facility or State Correctional Facility Enhancement	
	4.7.3		ce Liability	328
	4.7.4	Anticipato	ory Offenses	330
		4.7.4.1	Conspiracy	330
			Participants' Liability	331
			Where Only Two Conspirators Involved	332
			Abandonment of Conspiracy	332
			Coconspirator's Statements	332
		•	Inconsistent Verdicts	333
		4.7.4.2	Attempt	334
		4.7.4.3	Criminal Solicitation	334
	4.7.5	Examinat	ion of State's Witnesses	335
		4.7.5.1	Specific Witnesses	335
			Police Officers as Experts	335
		4.7.5.2	Impeachment Issues	340
		• .	Cross-Examination for Bias	340
			Impeachment with Prior Inconsistent Statements	343
			Drugs or Alcohol Affecting Ability to Perceive	343
			Expert Impeachment of Eyewitness Identification	344
	4.7.6	Examinat	ion of Codefendents	345
4.8	PHYSI	CAL EVID	ENCE	345
	4.8.1	Relevanc	e and Admissibility	345
	4.8.2	Chain of	Custody (Authentication and Identification)	346
1.9	MOTIC	N TO DIS	MISS AT CONCLUSION OF STATE'S CASE-IN-CHIEF	347
4.10	DEFEN	ISE CASE	AND DEFENSES	347
	4.10.1	Right to F	Remain Silent/Decision to Testify	348
		• Impeac	hment with Prior Convictions	349
		• Cross E	Examination of Defendant	351
	4.10.2	Specific D	Defenses	352
· ·		4.10.2.1	General Denial/Credibility of the Witnesses	352
		4.10.2.2	Entrapment	352
		4.10.2.3	Unwitting Possession	354
		4.10.2.4	Duress	355
		4.10.2.5	Alibi	356
		4.10.2.6	Misidentification	356
			Expert Testimony on Identification	357
			Standards for Suggestiveness	357
			• Mug Shot	358
			4.10.2.6(A) Photo Montage or Lineup	358
			4.10.2.6(B) Showup	359

and the second second

	4.10.2.6(C) Officer's Identification of the Defendant	
	4.10.2.7 Medical Necessity	360
	4.10.2.8 Drug-Induced Psychosis	360
4.11	JURY INSTRUCTIONS	360
	Sufficiency of the Instructions	360
	• Definitions	361
	4.11.1 Defendant's Proposed Instructions	361
	Theory of the Case	361
	Proof of Venue	362
	Chain of Custody	362
	4.11.2 Lesser Included Offenses	362
	4.11.3 "To Convict" Instructions/Drug Offenses	363
	• Delivery	363
	Knowledge	364
	Possession	364
	Possession with Intent to Manufacture or Deliver	364
	4.11.4 Limiting or Cautionary Instructions	364
	4.11.5 Curative Instructions	365
	4.11.6 Erroneous Instructions	365
	Adding an Alternative Means to Instruction	366
	Comment on the Evidence	367
	4.11.7 Unanimous Jury or "Petrich" Instruction	367
	4.11.8 Missing Witness Instruction	369
	4.11.9 Objections and Exceptions	369
4.12	MOTION TO REOPEN	369
4.13	CLOSING ARGUMENTS	370
	4.13.1 Prosecutorial Misconduct	370
	Misstatement of the Law or the Evidence	371
	Arguing for Acquittal Based on Jury Finding that State's Witnesses Lied	373
	Reference to Defendant's Failure to Testify	373
	Reference to Defendant's Character	373
	Reference to Alleged Threats to Witnesses	373
	Shifting Burden of Proof	374
	Impugning Defense Counsel	374
	Inflammatory Argument	375
	• Cumulative Error	375
	Preserving Error	375
	4.13.2 Proper Rebuttal	375
4.14	MOTION FOR A MISTRIAL	376
	4.14.1 Prosecutorial Misconduct	377
	Violation of Motion in Limine	377
	4.14.2 Juror Misconduct	378
	4.14.3 Deadlocked or "Hung" Jury	378

4.15	JUROR INQUIRIES	380
	4.15.1 During Trial	380
	4.15.2 During Deliberations	380
4.16	VERDICT	381
	4.16.1 Inconsistent Verdicts	382
	4.16.2 Special Findings	382
•	4.16,3 Polling the Jury	383

Section 5 – Post-Trial Proceedings

5.1	POST	-VERDICT MOTIONS	384
	• Lim	itations on Collateral Attacks	384
	• Per	sonal Restraint Petition Proceedings	386
	• Clai	ims Outside the Record	387
	5.1.1	Motion For Arrest of Judgment	388
	5.1.2	Motion For a New Trial	388
		For Juror Misconduct	390
		Unrevealed or Extraneous Information	390
		Juror Attentiveness	391
		Communication with Bailiff or Witness	391
		Meeting with a Police Officer	391
		Prosecutorial Misconduct	392
		Newly Discovered Evidence	392
		Recanted Testimony	394
		Erroneous Admission of Evidence	394
		Violation of the Right to Compulsory Process	394
		Contrary to Law or the Evidence	394
	5.1.3	Motion For Relief from Judgment	395
	5.1.4	Motion to Dismiss in Furtherance of Justice	396
5.2	PRES	ENTENCE INVESTIGATION AND REPORT	398
5.3	RIGHT	T TO APPEAL/DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	399

Section 6 – Sentencing

6.1	THE DETERMINATE SENTENCING SYSTEM	401
	Determinate Sentence	
	• Purposes of the SRA	401
	Interpretation of SRA Sentencing Provisions and the Rule of Lenity	402
	• Felonies	402
	State Preemption	402
	 Limited Right to Appeal a Standard Range Sentence and the Trial Court's Power to 	
	Correct an Erroneous Sentence	403

PART THREE - THE APPLICABLE LAW

Contents

المربية المربية الأمير

1

8

28.

	6.1.1	Calculati	ng the Standar	d Range	403
	•	6.1.1.1	Offense Date		404
		6.1.1.2	Seriousness	Level of the Offense of Conviction	404
		6.1.1.3	Offender Sco	re – Factors and Washout Rules	406
			6.1.1.3(A)	Criminal History	406
•			6.1.1.3(B)	First-Time Offender	407
			6.1.1.3(C)	Prior Convictions	409
				Prior Adult and Juvenile Felonies	409
		. • •	•	"Drug Offense" Definition	409
				Present Conviction for a Drug Offense	
		•		(Subsequent Drug Offense)	410
				Juvenile Convictions	410
				• Identity	410
			,	• Rap Sheet	411
				• Validity	411
				Effect of Miscalculation	411
		. •		"Served Concurrently"	412
			6.1.1.3(D)	Other Current Offenses	413
			0.1.1.0(2)	Consecutive or Concurrent	413
				Same Criminal Conduct	414
	•			The Same Criminal Intent	415
		••		The Same Time and Place	417
				Involving the Same Victim	417
		•	6112(E)	Relationship Between Prior and Current Offenses	417
			6.1.1.3(E)		417
				(Washout Rules)	
			•	Discharge From Parole Versus Vacation of a Conviction	418
				Foreign Convictions	418
			6.1.1.3(F)	Committed While on Community Placement	419
		6.1.1.4	•	S	419
				Offenses	419
			• •	Offenses Under RCW Chapter 9A.28	419
				•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	419
		· ·	•		420
			÷	••••••••••••••••••	420
6.2	SENTE				421
	6.2.1	-		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	421
		•		y Weapon Statute and Its Antecedent	422
	6.2,2			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	424
	6.2.3			il or State Correctional Facility	426
	6.2.4			Under Age Eighteen	426
6.3	EXCEP	TIONAL S	SENTENCES	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	426
	Subs	stantial and	d Compelling F	leasons	427
	Notic	е			427

,

، ئىرىيە (سى

		bus	427		
		octrine	428		
	agth of Sentence				
6.3.1		ng Circumstances	429		
	6.3.1.1	Statutory	429		
		Quantity Substantially Larger Than for Personal Use	430		
	•	High Degree of Sophistication	431		
•		Status in Drug Distribution Hierarchy	432		
		Major Drug Offense	432		
		Victim Particularly Vulnerable/Abuse of Position of Trust	432		
		Sexual Motivation	432		
		Multiple Offense Policy/"Clearly Too Lenient"	432		
	6.3.1.2	Non-Statutory	433		
	a a st	Factor Used in Calculating Presumptive Range	433		
		Gang Membership	433		
		• Future Dangerousness	434		
		 Callous Disregard for the Effects of Substance Abuse 			
		(Alcohol or Drugs)	434		
		"Worst Case" Scenario	434		
		Prior Deportations	434		
	•	Prior Misdemeanor Convictions	434		
		• Lying at Trial	435		
		Lack of Remorse	435		
6.3.2	Mitigating	Circumstances	435		
	6.3.2.1	Statutory	435		
	•	• Duress	436		
		 With no Apparent Predisposition, the Defendant is Induced by 			
		Others to Commit the Crime	436		
		Multiple Offense Policy/"Clearly Excessive"	436		
	6.3.2.2	Non-Statutory	437		
		Defendant's Cooperation	437		
		Alcoholism	437		
•		Rehabilitation	438		
		 Substance Abuse and the Defendant's Need of, Desire for, and 			
		Amenability to In-patient Treatment	438		
6.3.3	Review of	an Exceptional Sentence	441		
		ng Issue for Review	442		
		of a Plea Bargain	442		
6.3.4		r Affirmance	442		
6.3.5		lanifest Injustice Disposition	443		

6.4			EARING		443
	• Info	rmation the	Court May Consider		444
	6.4.1		S		444
			Witnesses	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	444
	6.4.2		nce Investigation and Report		445
	6.4.3				445
	6.4.4	-	and Sentence		445
6.5	PENA				446
	• Cos	ts. Fees ar	d Assessments		446
					446
	6.5.1		ent		447
			or Time Served for Drug Offenses		447
			Early Release Time for Drug Offenses		447
			Detention for Certain Drug Offenses		448
			ation of a Sentence		448
	6.5.2	•	se Supervision		449
	0.5.2				449
		6.5.2.1	Sentence Conditions		
			Crime-related Prohibitions		449
			Standard Conditions and Requirements		450
		6.5.2.2	Sanctions for Violations of Sentence Conditions		450
			• Jurisdiction		450
			Failure to Comply with Sentence		451
			Parole Violations		452
	6.5.3	Financial	Obligations		452

Section 7 – Appeal

0

7.1	NOTICE OF APPEAL/NOTICE OF DISCRETIONARY REVIEW	454
	Appealable Decisions	454
	Trial Court's Duty to Advise Defendant of the Right to Appeal	455
	Time for Filing Notice of Appeal	455
	Counsel's Failure to File a Notice of Appeal	456
	Contents of the Notice of Appeal	456
	Review of a Dismissal Without Prejudice	456
	Review of Stipulated Facts Trial	456
	Waiver of Right of Appeal as Part of Plea Bargain	457
	Review of Exceptional Sentence and Accelerated Review	457
	Appeal by the State	457
	Decisions Reviewable at the Discretion of the Reviewing Court	458
	Notice for Discretionary Review and Motion for Discretionary Review	458
	Authority of Trial Court After Notice Has Been Filed	458
7.2	ORDER OF INDIGENCY	458
7.3	APPEAL BOND AND STAY OF EXECUTION OF JUDGMENT	459

Section 8 – Other Consequences of a Felony Drug Conviction

8.1	RIGHT TO VOTE	461
8.2	RIGHT TO CARRY A FIREARM	461
8.3	IMMIGRATION CONSEQUENCES	462
8.4	FORFEITURE OF PROPERTY	462
8.5	LATER FEDERAL CONSEQUENCES	463